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March 1, 2009

The Honerable Mayor, Members of the Ciry Commission, City Manager,
and Citizens of the City of Opa-locka:

[t is my pleasure 10 submit the Comprehensive Annual Finangial Report (CAEFR) for the City of Opa-
locka, Florida, for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2008, pursuant to Section 218.39 of the Florida
Statutes, Chapter [0.550 of the Rules of the Auditor General of the State of Florida and the City
Charter. The financial statements included in this report conform to accounting principles general
accepted in the Umted States as prescnbed by the Governmental Accounting Siandards Board
(GASB). This report is published to fulfill that requirement for the fiscal year ended September 30,
2008.

Management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and reliability of the information
containgd in this report, based upon a comprehensive framework of internal control that it has
established for this purpose. Because the cost of internal control should not exceed anticipated
benefils, the objective i1s to provide reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance that the financial
statements are free of any material misstaiements.

The financial statements have been audited by Harvey, Covington & Thomas (HCT), a firm of
hicensed certified public accountants. The independent auditors have issued an unqualified opimion
on the City’s financial statements for the year ended September 30, 2008. The independent auditors’
report is located at the front of the financial section of this report.

Management’s discussion and analysis (MD&A) immediately follows the independent auditors’
report and provides narrative iniroduction, overview, and analysis of the basic financial staternents.
MD&A complement this letter of ransmittal and should be read in conjunction with it.

Prafile of the Government

The City of Opa-locka was incerporated in 1926 and operatles under a Commission/City Manager
form of government. The City Commission is comprised of the Mayor and four Commissioners, who
are responsible for enacting ordinances, resolutions, and regulations goverming the City; and
appointng the members of various advisory boards. Additionally, the City Commission appoinis the
City Manager, the City Attorney and the City Clerk. As Chief Admimstrative Officer, the Ciry
Manager is responsible for the enforcement of laws and ordinances, and the appointment and
supervision of the City’s department heads.

The City provides a full range of services, including police, construction and maintenance of

highways and streets and other infrastructure, recreational and culrural activities, water and
wasiewaler, sanitation, planning and zoning, and general administrative services.

780 FISHERMAN STREET, SUITE 335, OPA-LOCKA, FLORIDA 33054 (305) 6884611
www opalockafl.gov



The financial reporting entnity, under which the finagcial statements are prepared, includes all the
activities and functions for which the City is financially accountable.

The City is required to prepare, approve, adopt and execute an annul budget. This annual budget
serves as the foundation for the City’s financial planning and control. Budgetary coatrol is
maintained at the deparmental and fund level, with the finance department providing support 0
departments in the administration of their budgets. [n accordance with the city’s budget mansfer
policy, the city manager 15 authorized to mansfer budgeted amounts within any fund or function;
however, any supplemental appropriations or revisions that amend the adopled budget must be
approved by the City Commission. Budget to actual comparisons are provided in this report for all of
the City's funds that have an appropriated annual budget.

Lacal Economy

The City of Opa-locka comprises appreximately 4.2 square miles, has a population of approximately
16,000 and is located in the northern portion of Miami-Dade County. The City is a mix of residential,
commercial and mdustrial zones with the Opa-locka airport, which 1s owned and operated by Miami-
Dade County, being its best known landmark.

During fiscal year 2008, the City has seen decrease in business growth as a result of the slowing local,
state and national economy. Total permits issued in 2008 were 1,277 compared 1o 1,600 in 2007,
Likewise, combined new and renewal licenses 1ssued in 2008 were 1,606 compared to 899 in 2007,
However, during fiscal year 2008 the City also staried dialogue with two major businesses that
expressed desire 10 expand their operauons in the City.

Long-term Financial Planning

Fmancial planning continues to be of paramount importance to the City as we sirive 10 meet the
challenges of both the immediate and the foresceable future. The major projects undertaken by the
City have long-term financial iroplications for the existing as well as future resources of the City,
including but not limited to, the existing use of revenue ea earned for operational and future reserve
needs. The planrung and decisions undertaken by the City are always weighed in the context of the
financial burden that will be placed on both current and prospective residents, as well as the potential
economic and environmental impacts. Although there were projects which were intiated this year,
there are also projects that contnue to be expanded or are already works-in-progress that will 1ake a
number of years to complete.

Strategic goals and objectives are constanily reviewed by the City in light of the various economg
challenges that arise. As the City grows and develops, the long-term strategic focus has to be targeted
on the health, welfare, safery and quality of hife for our residents, as well as the fiscal health of the
City goverument. The recent property tax reform and the lowering of property values has led the City
to pursue a moderate and more conservaiive approach to revenue forecasts, as well as renewed focus
on cost containment. The Ciry’s fiscal year 2009 budget was adopted using the rolled-back millage
rate of 8.2084, but in order 10 maintain current levels of services and avoid fulliime workforce
reductions, cost containment, especially personnel related costs, had 10 be implemented. The fiscal
year 2009 budget was adopted eliminating salary increases and reducing capital expenditures.

On January 29, 2008, voters approved a property tax constitutional amendment, which included, but
was not limited to, an additional homestead exeroption of $25,000, and allowed for portability of the
“Save Our Home” value of up to $500,000. With the passing of this amendment, the revenue loss 1o
the City is estimated to be $1.1 million in fiscal year 2009.

Over the years, the City has developed the budget in such a way as to retamn an annual general fund
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reserve of approximaiely $500,000. As of September 30, 2008, the City unreserved, undesignated
general fund balance was 20% of fiscal year 2009 budget. The importance of monitering the Ciry's
fund balance levels has become an integral part of the overall financial planning of the City.

Major Initiatives
The City continues to emphasized delivery of focused public services in a way that provides
efficiency, effectiveness and value 10 the Citizens of the City of Opa-locka. Major initianives during

fiscal year 2008 are shown below.

Curtiss/Perviz Road Project

In June 2008, the Curtiss/Perviz road project was completed with total project cost of approximately
$5.3 million. This project was a realization of the long awaited “gateway” to the City. The project
was partly funded by the Miami-Dade County’s general obligations bond program and the safe
neighborhood program.

Public Safety

By the end of fiscal year 2008 the Ciry’s number of sworn officers increased to 48 from 18 swomn
officers at the beginning of the year. Enhancing public safety services was one of the top priorities of
the City m fiscal year 2008. As a result public safety services cost the City approximately $6.062
million in fiscal year 2008 compared to $5.746 million in fiscal year 2007.

Capilal Projects

Major capiial projects essential to the growth of the City include: 1) Sherbondy Park renovarions
(Phase I) which consists of demolition of existing structures and building a community pool and
community center; (2) NW 143" St Drainage Improvement; 3) NW 129" St. Drainage Tmprovement,
and 4) demolition of the old water plant.

Awards and Acknowledgements

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a
Certificate of Achevement of Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City for its Comprehensive
Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2007. This was the second
consecutive year that the City has earned this prestigious award. In order to be awarded a Certificate
of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting, the City had to publish an easily readable and
efficiently orgamzed CAFR that satisfied both generally accepted accounting principles and legal
tequirements.

A Certificate of Achievement 1s valid for a period of one vear only. We believe that our current
CAFR continues to roeet the Certificate of Achievement Program’s requirements and we are
submiiting it to the GFOA 10 determine its ehiglity for another cernficate.

In addition, the government also received the GFOA’s Distinguished Budet Presentation Award for
its FY 2008-2009 budget docurmnent. In order to quahfy for the Distinguished Budget Presentation
Award, the City’s budget document had to be judged proficient as a policy document, a financial
plan, an operations guide, and a communications device.

-iii-



The preparation of this report would not have been possible without the efficient and dedicated
service of the entire staff of the Finance Department. We wish to express our appreciation to all
members of the department who assisted and contributed 1o the preparation of this report. Special
recognition is given to the firm of Harvey, Covington and Thomas, LLC for their assistance and
professionalism.

In closing, without the leadership and support of the Mayor, the Vice-Mayor and the Commissioners,
the accomplishments and future successes noted in this report would not have been possible.

Respectully submirtted,

Ezekiel O. Ori, CPA, PhD.
Asst. City Manager/Finance Director

iv-
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HARVEY, COVINGTON & THOMAS UC

Certified Public Accountants & Consultants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Commission
City of Opa-locka, Florida

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-
type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of City of Opa-locka,
Florida, as of and for the year ended September 30, 2008, which collectively comprise the City’s basic
financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of
City of Opa-locka, Florida’s management. Our responsibility is to express opinicens on these financial
statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Compiroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles
used and the significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material cespects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund,
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Opa-locka, Florida, as of
September 30, 2008, and the respective changes in financial position, and cash flows, where applicable,
thereof for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
February 25, 2009, on our consideration of the City of Opa-locka, Florida’s internal conirol over
financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of
our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and
not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is
an integra! part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and important
for assessing the results of our audit.

The management’s discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison information on pages
3 through 14 and 44 through 59, are not a required part of the basic financial statements but are
supplementary information required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America. We have applied certain hmited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of
management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the required supplementary
information. However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it.

North Florido Central Florida West Florida South Florida
(904) 476.5713 Phone  (407) 475-1000 Phone ~ (813) 2215111 Phone  (954) 966-4435 Phone



Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the City of Opa-locka, Florida’s basic financial statements. The introductory
section, combining and individval nonmajor fund financial statements, and statistical section are
presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.
The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional
analysis as required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, and is also not a required part of the basic financial
statements of City of Opa-locka, Florida. The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial
statements and the schedule of expenditures of federal awards have been subjected 10 the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, are fairly stated in
all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. The introductory and
statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic
financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on them.

“t??&me?f ‘f//uf/ou /__waww { o &

Hollywood, Florida
February 25, 2009



CiTy OF OPA-LOCKA, FLORIDA

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As management of the City of Opa-locka, we offer readers of the City’s financial statements this
narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City for the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2008. We encourage readers to consider the information presented here in conjunction
with additional mformation that we have furmshed n our letier of wansmittal, which can be found on
pages i-1v of this report.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

¢ The assets of the City exceeded its ltabilities at the close of the most recent fiscal year by $21.457
million (net assets). Of this amount, $8.836 million (waresiricted ner asseis) may be vsed to meel
the Ciry’s ongoing obhigations to citizens and creditors.

s The City’s total net assets increased by $2.638 milhon.

e The City's governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of $5.931million a
decrease of $2.143 million in comparison with the prior year. Approximately 52.205 million of
this amount is available for spending at the City’s discretion (unreserved, undesignated fund

balance).

* At the end of the current fiscal year, unreserved, undesignated fund balance for the general fund
was $3.158 million or 24% of iotal general fund expenditures.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This management’s discussion and analysis are intended 10 serve as an introduction to the City’s basic
financial statements. The City’s basic financial statements comprise of three components: 1)
government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes io the financial
statements. This report also contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic
financial statements.

Government-wide Financial Statements
The governmeni-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of
the City’s finances in a manner symilar to a private-sector business.

The statement of ner assers presents information on all of the City’s assets and liabilities, with the
difference between the two reported as net assets. Over time, ncreases or decreases in net assets may
serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the City is improving or deterioranng.

The starement of activities presents informanon showing how the City’s net assets changed dunng the
most recent fiscal vear. All changes in net assets are reporied as soon as the underlying event giving
rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses
are reported in the statement for some 1tems that will only result in cash flows in furure fiscal perieds
(for example, uncollected taxes, and earned. but unused vacation leave).

Both the statement of net assets and the statement of activities of the government-wide financial
statements distinguish funchions of the City that are principally supported by taxes and
intergovernmental revenues (governmental activiries) from other functions that are intended to
recover all or a significant portion of their cost through user fees and charges (business-type



CITY OF OPA-LOCKA, FLORIDA

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

activities). The govermmental aclivities of the City include general government, public safety,
highways and streets, and culture and recreation. The business-type activities of the City include
water and sewer, solid waste, and storm water operanons.

The governmeni-wide financial statements can be found on pages 15-16 of this report.

Fund Financial Statements

A fund is a grouping of related accouns that is used to maintain centrol over resources that have been
segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City uses fund accounting to ensure and
demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of the City can be
divided into two categories: governmental funds and proprietary funds.

Governmental funds. Govemmenial funds are used to account for essentally the same functions
reporied as govermental activines in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the
government-wide financal statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-ferm
inflows and ouiflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available
at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a governipent’s near-term
financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than ihat of the government-wide financial
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with simlar
information presented for governmental activities in the govemment-wide financial statements. By
doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the govemment's pear-term
financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement
of revenues, expenditures, and changes m fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate the
comparison between governmental funds and governmental acuivities.

The City maintains shirteen (13) individual governmenta! funds. Informarion is presenied separately
in the governmental fund balance sheet and io the governmental fund statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the general fund, safe neighborhood capital projects
fund and YEMA fund which are considered to be major funds. Data from the other ten (10)
governmental funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for each
of these non-major governmental funds are provided in the form of combining statemenis elsewhere
1n this report.

The City adapts an annual appropriated budget for the general fund and FEMA fund. A budgetary
comparison statement has been provided for both funds to demonstrate compliance with budget.

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 17-20.

Praprietary funds. The City mamtains one type of propnetary fund. Enrerprise funds are used to
report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial
statements. The City uses enterprise funds to account for its water and sewer, stormwater and solid
waste operations.

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial statements.
only in more detail. The proprietary fund financial staterents provide separate information for the



CITY OF OPA-LOCKA, FLORIDA

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
water and sewer, stormwater and solid waste operations. Water and sewer 1s the major enterprise
funds of the City.
The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 21-23 of this report.
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
The notes to the financial statements provide additional information that is essential for a full
understanding of the informarion provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.

The notes 1o the financial statemenits can be found on pages 24-43 of this repont.

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSJS

As noted carlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial
position. In the case of the City, assets exceeded liabilities by $21.457 mullion at the close of the maost
recent fiscal year.

By far the largest portion of the City’s net assets (49%) reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g.,
land, buildings and building umprovements, and equipment), less any related debr used to acquire
those assets that is still outstanding. The City uses these capital assets 1o provide services 1o its
cilizens; consequenty these assets are nor available for fuwre spending.  Although the Ciry’s
investment in its capital assets 15 reported net of related debt. it should be noted that the resources
needed 1o repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves
cannot be used to liquidate these liabihities.

City of Opa-locka's Net Assets

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activilies Total
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007

Current and ather assets $ 8,198,250 $9,762,239 5 8,119,148 S 5,230,143 §$16,317,398 514992382
Capual assets, net 11,941,595 8,602,377 11,608,455 11,799,486 23,550,050 20,401,863
Total assets 20,139.845 18364616 _ 19727603 _17.029.629 _ 39867448 _ 35394245
Long-term liabilttics 7407611  7,721.574 6,906,175 5,483,822 14313,786 13,205,396
Other labilities 2,266.441 _ 1,686,822 1.829630 1,683,180 4,096,071 3.370,012
Total liabilines 9.674,052 _ 9.408.396 8.735,805 7,167,012 18409857 _ 16575408
Nel assets:
Invested in capital assets,

net of related debt 5,509,644 1,836,232 5,098,389 6,824,327 10,608,033 8.680,559
Restmcted 1.618.813 1,648,369 393,842 382,423 2,012,655 2,030,792
Unrestricted 3337336 5,451,619 5,499,567 2,655,867 8,836,903 8,107,486
Total net assets $10,465,793 38,956,220 510,991,798 S 9,862,617 $21,457,591 318,818,837




CiTy OF OPA-LOCKA, FLORIDA
MANAGEMENT’'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
An additional portion of the Ciry’s net assets (10%) represents resources that are subject to external
restriclions on how they may be used. The remaining balance of unrestricted nef assets (41%) may
be used 10 meet the City’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.
At the end of the current fiscal year, the City is able to report positive balances in all three calegories
of net assets as a whole, as well as for its separate governmental and business-type activities. The
same simation held true for the prior fiscal year.
City of Opa-locka’s Changes in Net Assets

Governmental Business-type

activibes activities Total
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
Revenues:
Program revenuces:
Charges for services N 638257 S 816.97¢ 8.027,981 7 006,580 8,666,238 7,823,559
Grants and contrbutions 1,802,387 4,691,813 - 4,307,851 1,802,387 8,999,666
General revenues. - -
Property taxes 7,441,927 7,207,046 - 7,441,927 7,207,046
Other taxes 3.649.99] 4,099,570 - 3.649,99) 4,009,570
Intergovernmental, unrestricted 2,324 878 1.764.504 - 2324878 1.764,906
Unrestricted interest earnings 131,469 283.43) 185,758 304,702 317,227 588,133
Miscellancous 133,169 397,185 - 22,268 133,169 419,453
Total revenues 16,122,078 16,260,932 2.213,739 11,641,401 24,335,817 39,902.333
Expenses
General goveroment 4,603,861 4.221,761 - - 4,603 861 4,221,761
Public safery 6,062,394 5,746,353 - . 6,062,394 5,746,353
Highways 2nd streets 2,664,432 3,079,201 - - 2.664,432 3,079,201
Culrere and recreation 892,500 389,461 - 392,569 480 461
Interest and fiscal charges 389.219 408.438 - . 389219 408 438
Waler and sewer - - 5,342.49] 10,699,290 5,342,491 10,659,290
Stormwater - - 534,378 1,716,945 534,378 1,716,944
Solidwasie - - 1,207,689 873,783 1,207,689 §73,783
Total Expenses 14,612 505 14,345.214 7.084,558 13,260,017 21,697,063 27,635,231
Increase (decrease) in net asscts 1509573 5 4915718 1,129,181 & (1.648,616) § 2.638,754 § 3,267,102
Net assets, beginmng 8.956,220 4,040,502 9,862,617 11,511,233 18 818,837 15,551,735
Net assets, ending $ 10465793 S 8956220 § 10,991,798 § 9,862,617 § 20457591 3 18818837

The City’s net assets increased by $2.638 millien dunng the current year. About 38% of this increase
represenis the net effect of rates increase in the water and sewer fund. Approximately another 47% is
attributable to capital grants received. The remainder of the growth represents the degree to which
INCreases in on-going revenuds oudstripped similar increases in ongoing expenses.



CITY OF OPA-LOCKA, FLORIDA

MANAGEMENT 'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Governmental Acfivities
Govemmental activities increased the City’s net assets by $1.5 million, thereby accounting for 57
percent of the total growth in the net asseis of the City.

*

Total revenues for the City's governmental activities decreased by $3.1 million or 16 percent,
while total expenses increased by $.267 million or 2 percent. Revenues decreased dug to
decrease in grants by $2.8 milhion and decrease in other taxes. In fiscal year 2008 the City
received $1.8 million capital grams for the Curtis/Perviz read improvement project compared
to $3.7 million in fiscal vear 2007 Other taxes and interest income also decreased
significantly.

(n 2008 property taxes is almost at the same level as prior year, This is the net effect of
increased assessed property values and the effect of property tax reform which rolled-back
the City’s millage rate from 9.8000 to 8.0084.

The increase 1n total expenses was a result of the City effort 10 improve public safety. quality
of life, and the overall image of the City. In 2008, the City offered hiring incentives to police
recruits to fill open positions and ceniracied a third party to clean up city-wide canals and
alleyways.

Expenses and Program Revenues — Governmental Activities
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CITY OF OPA-LOCKA, FLORIDA

MANAGEMENT S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Revenue by Source - Governmental Activities
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Business-type Activities
Business-type activities increased the Ciry’s net assets by $1.129 million or 43 percent. Key elements
of this increase are as follows:

Charges for services increased by $1.0 million or 13% mainly due to increase in water and
sewer rates designed to fund operations and future capital improvements of the water and
sewer fund.

The water and sewer fund expenses in fiscal year 2007 included $3.9 million of customers’
accous(s, representing penalties that were written off. There was no write-off in fiscal year
2008.

Cost of sewer treatment for the current year decreased by $1.3 million due partly to a credit
adjustment from Miami-Dade County for billings io the City for fiscal year 2007. Also,
major repairs made to the system teduced infiltration thereby resuliing in reduced billing
from the County.

Decrease in grants and contributions by 543 nullion offset the increase i charges for
services revenue and the decrease in expenses mentioned above.



CiTY OF OPA-LOCKA, FLORIDA

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE GOVERNMENT’S FUNDS

As noted earlier, the City uses fund accounting 10 ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-
related legal requirements.

Governmental Funds

The focus of the City’s governmentai funds is 10 provide information oo near-term inflows, outflows,
and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the Ciry’s funding
requirements. In particular, wnreserved fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a
government's net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

Expenses and Program Revenues — Business-type Activities

Revenue by Source — Business-type Activities
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CiTY OF OPA-LOCKA, FLORIDA

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the City's governmental funds reperied combmed ending fund
balances of $5.9 million, a decrease of $2.1 million In companson with the prior year.
Approximately 37 percent of this amount {§2.2 million) constitutes unreserved, undesignated fund
balance, which is available for spending at the City's discretion. The remainder of the fund balance is
reserved or designated to indicate that it is not available for new spending because it has already been
commilted to 1) pay debt service ($.360 million), 2) pay capital project costs ($.599 million), or 3)
various other resiricted purposes $(2.7 million).

General Fund

The general fund is the chief operating fund of the City. At the end of the curreru fiscal year,
vnreserved, undesignated fund balance of the general fund was $§3.1 million, while total fund balance
reached $5.2 million. As a measure of the general fund’s liquidity, it may be useful fo compare both
unreserved fund balance and 1otal fund balance to total fund expenditures. Unreserved, undesignated
fund balance represents 24% of 1otal general fund expenditures, while total fund balance represents
35% of the same amount.

The general fund revenues decreased by 3%, while expenditures increased by 31%. After net
transfers out to other funds of $.934 million the result is a $1.903 mullion decrease in fund balance.

The amount of general fund revenue by type, their percent of the total and the amount of change
compared o prior year are shown in the following schedule:

Tocrease Percent

2008 Percent 2007 Percent {(Decrease)  of Increase

General Fund Revenues Amount of Total Amount af Total From 2007 (Decrease)
Property $ 7441927 55% §  T.207.046 32% S 234881 3%
Uiliry service taxes 894.359 7% 892,602 6% 2,357 0%
Commubization service laxes 637.712 3% 652,530 5% (14,818) -2%
Local opiion, use and foel raxes 205,194 2% 308,170 2% {12,976) 4%
Franchise fees 1.540.751 1% 1,919,542 14% {378.791) -20%
Licenses and permits 667,008 5% 965,504 7% {298.456) 231%
lotergovernmental 292.451 2% 75,304 1% 213,147 269%
Charges for services 37.010 0% 178,711 1% (141,701 -75%
Fines and forfeitures 216,124 2% 27,063 0% 189 059 699%
[nterest 113,163 1% 253015 2% {139.852) -55%
Other Tevenue 180,819 1% 498 545 4% (317,726} -64%
Transfers 1,172,934 9% §74,259 9% 208,675 349%
Total Revenues S 13,489.542 100% 3 13,855,783 100% (366,241) -3%

s Property 1ax revenues increased by 3%; a net effect of increased property valugs and
decreased 1 tax rate from 8.9000 to 8.084.

»  Franchise fegs decreased by 20% as a result of decreased due to decrease in franchise services
receipls.

» Intergovernmenial revenues in 2008 mcluded new grants for the police and parks departments
for public safety equipment and park improvement, respectively.

¢ Fines and forfeitures increased due to the City aggressively enforcing the City codes and
ordmnances.

-10-



CiTY OF OPA-LOCKA, FLORIDA

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Interest decreased due mainly to decreasing interest rales on cash investments during the
year.

Expenditures in the general fund are shown 1n the following schedule:

[ncrease Percent

2008 Percent 2007 Percent {Decrease) of tncrease
General Fund Expenditores Amount of Total Amount of Total From 2007 (Decrease)
General government 4,520,068 29% 3,951,414 34% 568,654 14%
Public safety 5,136.411 33% 4,842 334 41% 293,577 6%
Highways and streeis 1,572,560 12% 1,508,536 13% 364,024 24%
Culture and recreation 881,189 6% 868,588 %% 12,601 1%
Capial outlay 723,414 5% 352,708 3% 370,706 105%
Debt service 151,844 1% 221.514 2% (69,670} 3%
Transfers 2,107,635 14% - 0% 2,107,635 N/
Total revepues 15,393,121 100% 11,745,594 100% 3,647,527 31%

Increase in general govemment reflects the costs associated with the Ciry’s administrative
offices, including a new comimission chamber, moving 0 a new office building, the Town
Center One.

Public safety accounts for over one-third of the general fund’s budget. The 6% increase is
primarily due to additional officers hired during the year and the related cost of police
academy training and hiring incentives that was put in place in an effort to fill open positions.
Increase in highways and strects functicn 15 due substantially 1o costs associated with the
canals and alleyways maintenance contract that was entered into during 2008.

Increase in capital outlay reflects the cost of parks improvement capital projects and
computer hardware and software for the police department’s records managemesit system.
[nterfund transfers were made 10 the capital projects fund to fund the City’s match to the
Curtis/Perviz road projects which 1s pnimarily funded by Miami-Dade County.

Proprietary Funds
The City’s proprietary fund statements provide the same type of information found in the
govemment-wide financial statements, but in more detail.

The unresiricied et assets {deficit) of the water and sewer, stormwater, and solid wasie funds at the
end of the current fiscal year amounted to $5.499 million, $.980 million and $(.482) million,
respectively. The total increase in net assets for all enterprise funds was $1.129 million. Other factors
concerning the finances of these funds have already been addressed in the discussion of the Ciry’s
business-type activities.

1.



CITY OF OPA-LOCKA, FLORIDA

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

During the year there was a $1,888,135 increase in appropnations between the original and final
amended budget. Following are the main components of the increase:

$1,245,135 supplemental appropriation to fund the City’s match for the Curtiss/Perviz capital
project;

$424,500 supplemental apprepriation to the police departiment for personnel costs related to
several additional patrol officers posinons and the implementation of new program in high
crime areas in the City;

$100,000 supplemental appropriations for additional fuel expenditures due to general increase
in fuel costs;

$118,890 supplemenial appropriations for special events related expenses;

$128.507 supplemental appropriation for the purchase of roads and streets maintenance
equipment; and

$87,250 supplemental appropnatons for crime prevention program.

The final amended budget was balanced by using $1,052,551 of available fund balance.

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital Assets

The City’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as of
September 30, 2008 amounts to $23.550 million {nel of accumulated depreciation). This invesunent
in capital assets includes land, buildings and buildings improvement, machinery and equipment, park
facilities, roads and utility systems. The total increase in the City’s investment in capital assets for
the current fiscal year was 15% {a 39% increase for governmental activities and a 1.6% decrease for
business-type activities).

Major capital assets additions during the current fiscal year included the following:

$1.2 mullion towards the complenon of the Curtis/Perviz roadway project. Total cost of the
completed project amounts to $3.4 million.

$.6 million in parks improvements

$.5 million wn computer software and hardware and various furniture and equipment

-12-



CITY OF OPA-LOCKA, FLORIDA

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

City of Opa-locka’s Capilal Assets
{ner of aceumalated depreciation)

Governmental Business-type
Acuvities Activities Torat
2008 zoat 2008 2007 2008 2007
Land § 2803291 3 2805291 S 14762 % 14762 % 2820053 S 2820053
Construction in progresss 600,255 - - ~ 600,255 -
Buldings and bwlding improvements 390,433 429.780 (45,183) {43,133 343,250 384,597
Utihty plant and systems - - 12,349,503 12,480,629 12,349,503 12,480,629
Furniture and equipment 1.097.018 686,686 (710,627 (650.722) 386,391 35,964
Infrastrucire 7.048,598 4,680,620 - - 7,048,598 4,680,620
Total $ 11,941,595 & E602377 8 11608435 5 11799486 § 23 550,050 & 20,401.863

Additienal informauon con the City’s capital assets can be found in Note 6 on pages 35-36 of this
report.

Long Term Debt
At the end of the current fiscal year the ciry had total debt outstanding of $13.269 million, a decrease
of 10% from pnor year.

Duning the current fiscal year the City received $2.052 million under the stale revolving fund loan
program of the State of Flonda Department of Environmental Protection for upgrades to the water

and sewer system madg in fiscal year 2007,

Additional information on the City’s long-termn debt can be found on Note 8 on pages 38-40 of this
report.

Ciry of Opa Locka's Outstanding Debt

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
Revenue Bonds 5 6040000 § 6,250,000 3 - 5 - 5 6040000 S 6.230,000
Capital Leases 391,951 496,145 2.864,166 3,169,436 3,256,007 3,663,581
Loans - - 3,645,900 1,805,723 3,655,500 1,803,723
Liability to FDOT - . 27,026 395,596 327,026 395,596
Luability to State of Florda - - - - - -
Total S 6431951 $ 6746145 5 6837092 § 35370755 § 13,269,043 § 12,116,500

-13-



CiTY OF OPA-LOCKA, FLORIDA

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGET AND RATES

»  During the 2008 Special Session, the Florida Legislature passed a comprehensive ad valorem 1ax
bill and the Florida electorate approved Amendment | to the Flonda Constitution rglative to
property taxatuon. Both actions resuited in mandates 1o lower the millage rate which ulumately
lowers ad valorem tax revenue.

¢ The fiscal year 2008 budget approved millage rate 1s 8.2084.

+  Due to the slumping economy, revenues sources other than property taxes are expecied to have a
downward trend.

All of these factors were considered in preparing the City of Opal-locka’s budget for the 2009 fiscal
year.

Requests for Information
This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City of Opa-locka’s finances for
all those with an interest in its finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this

report or requests for additional information should be addressed to The City of Opa-locka, Finance
Department, 780 Fisherman St 4™ Floor, Opa Locka, Florida 33054.

-14-
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CI1TY OF OPA-LOCKA, FLORIDA

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

SEPTEMBER 30. 2008

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 3 1,165,839 § 6,128,654 § 7.294,493
Receivables. net 3,276,253 1.223.398 4,501,651
Internal balances 1,236,303 (1,236,303 -
Estimated unbilled services - 612.240 612240
Inventories 52,439 4,654 57.093
Prepaid items and olher assets 288,240 - 288,240
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 2,179,176 1,384,505 3,563,681
Capital assets, not being depreciated 3.403.546 14,762 3,420,308
Capital assets, being depreciated, net R.536,049 11,593,693 20,129,742

Total assets 20,139,845 19.727.603 39,867,448
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 2,173,557 186,402 2,359959
Customer deposits - 1,166,455 1,166,455
Unearned revenue 92 884 - 92,884
Due 1o other governments - 476,773 476,773
Noncurrent liabilities:

Due within one year 376.269 649,443 1,025,712

Due 1n more than one year 7.031,342 6,256,732 13,288.074

Total liabilities 0,674,052 8,735,805 18,409,857
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 5,509,644 5098389 10,608,033
Restricted for:

Capnal projects 599,051 - 599,05]

Public safery 639,684 - 659,684

Debt covenants 360,078 393,842 753,920
Unrestncred 3,337 3306 5499,567 8,836,903

Total net assets 5 10,465,793  § 10,991,798 § 21,457,591

See notes o basic financial statements.
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CITY OF OPA-LOCKA, FLORIDA

BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2008

Other
Safe Nonomajor Total
Neighborhood Governmental Governmentat
General FEMA, Capital Projects Funds Funds
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents S 1,16583% S - 8 - S - S 1,165.839
Receivables, net §21.526 233,920 1,363,445 252,362 3,276,253
Due from other funds 5,121,355 36,071 84,800 590,449 5,832,675
[nventones 52,440 - - - 52,440
Prepaid items 288,240 - - - 238,240
Resiricted cash and cash equivalents - 956,019 - 1,223,157 2,179,176
Total assets S 7449400 5 1831010 3§ 1.448.245 § 2065968 5 12,794,623
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities S 844,105 § [,232475 § 30,661 5 46,316 5 2,173,557
Due 1o other funds 1,263,383 - 2,061,930 1,271.059 4,596,372
Deferred revenues 92,884 - - - 92,884
Total habilities 2,200,372 1,232,475 2,112,591 1,317,375 6,862,813
Fund balances
Reserved for:
lnventaries 52,439 - - - 52.439
Prepaid items 288.240 - - - 288,240
Public safery - 598,535 - 78,800 677,335
Transportation - - - 599,051 599,051
Debt service - - - 360,078 360,078
Unreserved, designated:
Designated for accumulated vacation/sick leave 390,000 - - - 390,000
Designated for contingencics 1,359,851 - - - 1,356,851
Unreserved, undesignated reported in:
General fund 3,158,498 3,158,498
Special revenue funds - - - (289,336} (289.336)
Capiial prajects funds - - (664.346) - (664,340
Total fund balances 5,249,028 598,535 (664,346) 748,593 5,931.810
Total habilives and tund balances § 7449400 S 1,831,010 S 1448245 § 2065968 § 12,794,623

See notes to basic financial slatements,
-17-



CiTtY OF OPA-LOCKA, FLORIDA
RECOWCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET TO THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
SEFTEMBER 30, 2008

Fund balances - total governmental funds (Page 1 7) $ 5,931,810

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement
of net assels arg different because:

Capilal assets used 1n governmential activities are not
financial resources and, therefore, are not reporied in the
governmental funds.

Goverrunental capital assets 28,561,967
Less accumulated depreciation (16,620272)

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable. are not due and
payable in the current period and, therefore, are not reported in
the governmental funds.

Bonds pavable (6,040,000)

Capital leases (391,952)

Compensated absences (975,660)
Met asseis of governmenlal activities (Page 15) ) 10,465,793

See notes to basic financial statements.
-18-



CiTy OF OPA-LOCKA, FLORIDA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2008

Safe Other
Neighborhood Nonmajor Total
Capital Governmental Governmental
General FEMA Projects Funds Funds
REVENUES:
Taxes:
Property taxes $ 7441927 5 - S - 8 - 8 7441927
Uhility taxes 894,359 - - - 894,359
Communications service 1axes 637,712 - - 637,712
Local option, use and fuel taxes 295,194 - - - 295,194
Local business taxes 281,975 - 281,975
Franchise fees 1,540,751 - - 1,540,751
Permits, fees and licenses 385,123 - - - 385,123
[ntergovernmental 292,451 261,375 1,243,419 2,330,020 4,127,265
Charges for services 37,010 - - - 37,010
Fines and forfeitures 216,124 - - - 216,124
Interest 113,163 7.686 - 10,620 131,469
Other 133,169 - - - 133,169
Total revenues 12,268,558 269,061 1,243,419 2,340,640 16,122,078
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
General government 4,520,068 - - - 4.520.068
Public safety 5,136,411 28].554 - 548,948 5,966,913
Highways and streets 1,872,560 - 64,485 - 1,937,045
Culture and recreation g881.189 - - - 881,189
Capital cutlay 723,414 - 3,533,643 - 4,257,057
Debt service’
Principal 139,699 - - 210,000 349 699
Tnterest 12,145 - - 389219 401,164
Total expenditures 13,285,486 281,554 3,598,128 1,148,167 18,313,335
Excess (deficiency) of revenugs
over expenditures {1,016,528) {12,493 (2,334,709 1.192,473 (2,191,257}
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Capital lease proceeds 47,050 - - - 47,650
Transfers in 1,172,933 - 2.107,635 - 3,280,568
Transfers out (2,107,635 - - (1,172,933) (3,280,568)
Total other financing sources (uses) {BR7.052) - 2,107,633 (1,172.933) 47,650
Net change in fund balances (1,503,580) (12.493) (247,074) 19,540 (2,143,607}
Fund balances, beginning 7,152,608 611.028 (417,272} 729,053 8.075,417
Fund balances, ending $ 5249028 S 598,535 % (664,346) S 748,593 § 5931810

See notes 10 basic financial statements.
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CITY OF OPA-LOCKA, FLORIDA
RECONCILIATION OF THE CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES
OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTTVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2008

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the staterment
of acuvities (Page 16) are different because:

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds (page 19) S (2.143,607)

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures.
However, in the statement of activities, the cost of those assets
is depreciated over their estimated useful lives.

Expenditures for capital outlays 4,257,057
Less current depreciation (917.842)

The issuance of long-termn debt provides current financial resources to
governmental funds, while the repayment of the prncipal of long-term debt
consumes the current financial resources of governmental funds. Neither
transaciton, however, has any effect on net asseis. Also, governmental funds
report the effect of issuance costs, premiums, discounts, and similar tems
when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and amortized n
the statemnent activities. This amount is the net effect of these differences in
the lreatment of long-term debl and related items.

Principal payments of bonds payable 210,000
Principal payments of capital leases 151,844
Capiial lease proceeds {47,650)

Some riems reported in the statement of activities do nor require the use of
current financial resources and, 1herefore, are not reported in the governmental
funds. These activities consist of:

Change in compensated absences (229
Change in net assets of governmental acnwvities (Page 16) S 1,509,573

See notes to basic financial statements.
-20-



C1TY OF OPA-LOCKA, FLORIDA

ASSETS

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivatents
Receivables, nat
Estmated unbilled services
Due from other funds
[nventories
Prepaid costs

Total current assels

Noncurrent assets:
Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Capital assets, net

Total noncurrent assets

Tolal assets

LIABILITTES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Due to other funds
Due 10 other governmenis
Customers’ deposits
Compensated absences
Current portion of loans payable
Current portion of capita) lease payable

Total current habilines

Noncurrent liabilities:
Loans payable
Capital lease payable

Total noncurrent liabilities
Total habilities

NET ASSETS

[nvested in capiial assets, net of related debt

Restncted for debt covenanis
Unrestncted

Total net assets

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2008

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Water and Nonmajor

Sewer Stormwater Solid Waste Total
5,937.045 S 191,609 $ 6,128,654
1,140,712 24,686 - 1,225,398
594425 17,815 - 612,240
1,278,484 1,544,173 250 2,822.907
4,654 - 4,634
8.955,320 1,838,283 250 10,793,853
1,384,505 - - 1,384,505
11,361,835 246,600 - 11,608453
12,746,360 246,600 - 12,992,960
21,701,680 2,084,883 250 23,786,813
23,802 75 102,525 186.402
2,947,568 850.815 260,827 4,059.210
476,773 - - 476,773
1,046,976 - 119,479 1.166,455
62.344 6,739 - 69,083
268,323 - - 268,323
312,037 - 312,037
5,197,823 857,629 482 .83 6,538 283
3,704,603 - 3,704,603
2,552,129 - - 2.552,129
6,256,732 - . 6,256,732
11,454,555 857,629 482,831 _ 12,795.015
4,851,789 246,600 5,098,380
393,842 - 393,842
5,001,494 98G.654 (482,581) 5,499,567
$ 10,247,125 & |,227,254 § (482,581) § 10,991,798

See notes 1o basic finangial statements.
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C1TY OF OPA-LOCKA, FLORIDA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES. AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2008

Operating revenues:
Charges for services
Other revenues

Total operating revenues

Operaling expenses:
Operating, admimstrative and raintenance
Depreciation

Tozal operating expenses
Operating income (loss)

Non-operating revenues (expenses)
Interest earnad
Interest and fiscal charges

Total non-operating revenues (expenses)

Change in net assets
Net assets, beginning

Net assets, ending

Business-Type - Enterprise Funds

Water and Nonmajor

Sewer Stormwater Solid Waste Total
S 6.942,339 S 271,277 3 793,534 § 8,007,150
20,831 - - 20,831
6,963,170 271,277 793,534 8,027,981
4,682 851 511,462 1,175,364 6,369,677
452,039 55,241 - 307,280
5,134,890 566,703 1,175,364 6.876,957
1,828,280 (295,426) (381.830) 1,151,024
185,758 - - 185,758
(207,601) - - (207,601)
{21,843) - (21,843)
1,806,437 (295,426) {381.830) 1,129,181
8,440,688 1,522,680 (100,751) 9,862,617
S 10247125 § 1,227254  § (482,581 § 10,991,798

See notes 10 basic financial statements.
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C1TY OF OPA-LOCKA, FLORIDA

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2008

Cash flpws from operating activities:

Cash receved from cuslomers

Cash paid 10 suppliers

Cash paid to employees

Internal activity payments from (ta} other funds, net

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities

Cash flows [rom nencapital financing activities:
Pancipal pard on lozns

Met cash provided by (used in) noncapital financing acivihes

Cash flows from capital and related Roancing actlvities:
Acquisition and construction of capital assels
Capital contribution
Proceeds from capilal borrowings
Principal paid on capital debi
Interest paid on capital debt
et cash provided by (used in) capital and related

financing activities

Cash flows from iavesting activities:
Interest on investments
Net cash provided by investing acuvilies
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash aquivalents, beginning

Cash and cash eguivalents, ending

Displayed as:
Unresimeted
Restricted
Total , September 30
Reconciliation of operating income to net cash provided
by operating activities:
Opsenating mcome ([0ss}
Adjusoments 1o reconcile operating income Lo net cash provided by
(used in) operating activihies:
Depreciztion and amoriization
Change in assets and liabilities:
(Increase) decrease in:
Accounts receivable
Esumated unbilled serviees
Due from other funds
Prepaid costs
[ncrease (decrease) in:
Accounts payzble and accrued expenses
Due to other funds
Due to other governments
Customers’ deposits
Compensated absences

Net cash provided by {used in) operating acHivities

Business-Type - Enterprise Funds

Water Nonmajor
and Sewer Stormwilter Solidwaste Tolal

S 6646171 3 272,136 & 753,534 5 7711844
(2,871,314) {23.653) (1.099,196) (3,994,163)
(2.010412) {499.91) (2.510,312)
(849,671 329237 05,662 (773,246)
914,774 3,654 434,120
[68,570) . - (68,570)
(68,570) - . (68.570)
(316,250 - {316.250)

- 672,263 - 672.263

2,052,024 - - 2,052,024
BITIT - (517,017}
(184.668) - - (184,668}
1,033,989 (72263 - (6,252
185,753 - 185.758
18§5.758 - - 185,758
2,065,951 191,609 - 2,237,559
3,255,599 - - 5,255,599

5 7,321,550 § 191,609 § - 3 7.513.159
5937045 S 191,609 3 - 5 6128634
1,384 50% - - 1,384,505

S 7321.550 3 131608 5 - § 7.513,159
s 1,828,280 S (295.426) S (3%1.830) § 1.151.024
452,039 55241 - 507,280
{371.25%9) 1.533 - (369,726}
(163.336) (674) . (166,010
{1.244 836} (732.906) 44,835 (1,932,907)
5275 - - 5,275
{545,193) (3,831 Ta.168 (572,862}

65165 303,668 260,527 1,139,661

476,773 - - 476,773
219,596 . - 219,596
{35.730) {8.234) - {43.984)

3 914,774 § (480,634) § 3 434,120

See notes 1o basic financial stalements.
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NOTE 1.

CITY OF OPA-LOCKA, FLORIDA
Notes to Basic Financial Statements

Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2008

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The City of Opa-Locka, Florida (the “Ciry”") in Miami-Dade County, Florida (the "County™) was
incorporated in 1926 by the Laws of Flonida Chapter 13187. The City comprises approximately
4.5 square milcs of land and operates under a Commission/City Manager form of government and
provides municipal services 1o 1ts residents, including general government, public safery,
fransportation, and parks and recreation. The City also operates water, sewer, storm water, and
sanitation enterprises.

The accounting policies of the City conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America (GAAP) as applied to governmental units. This report, the accounting
systems, and classification of accounis conform to standards of the Governmental Accounting
Swandards Board (GASB}, which is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing
governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The more sigmificant accounting
policies of the City are described below.

A. Reporting Entity

The financial statements were prepared in accordance with GASB Statement No. 14, The
Financial Reporting Entity, as amended by GASB Statement No. 39, which establishes
standards for defining and reporting on the financial reporting entity. The financial reporting
entity consists of the City, organizations for which the City is financially accountable and
other organizations for which the nature and significance of their relationship with the City
ar¢ such that exclusion would cause the reporting entity’s financial statements 10 be
misleading or incomplete.

The City is financially accountable for a component anit if it appoints a voting majority of the
organization’s governing board and it i1s able to impose its will on that organization or there is
potential for the organization to provide specific financial benefits to, or impose specific
financial burdens, on the City. Based on these criteria, entities were evaluated for inclusion in
the City’s reporting entity with the following results:

The City passed ordinances 1n prior vears establishing various neighborhood improverment
districts. The following neighborhood improvemen: districts, which are considered to be
component units of the City, have not been included in the financial statements because there
has been no financial activity for several years and the funds have no assets, liabilines. or
fund balances.

1) East-West Neighborbhood Improvement District
2) Ali-Baba Neighborhood Improvement District
3 Niles Garden Neighborhood Improvement District
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CiTY OF OPA-LOCKA, FLORIDA
Notes to Basic Financial Suatements

Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2008

Goveroment-wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net assets and statement of
activities) report information on all of the activities of the City. For the most part. the effect
of inter-fund activity has been removed from these statements. Govermmental activitigs,
which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reporied
separaiely from business-rype activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges
for support.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given
function are offsct by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly
identifiable with a specific function. Amounts reported as program revenues nclude 1)
charges te customers or applicants who purchase, use of directly benefit from goods, services.
or privileges provided by a given function, and 2) granis and contributions that are restricted
10 meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function. Taxes and other
items not included armong program revenues are reported as general revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds and proprietary funds.
Major individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reporied as
separate cojumns in the fund financial statements. All remaining governmental funds are
aggregated and reported as nonmajor funds.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation

The govermmment-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund
statements. Revenues are recorded when carned and expenses are recorded when a liability 1s
incwrred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as
revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as
revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

Governmental fund financial statemens are reported using the current financial resowrces
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized
as soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available
when they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay habiliues
of the current penod. For this purpose, the City considers revenues 1o be available if they are
collected within sixty (60) days of the end of the current fiscal period, with the exception of
expenditure driven {rexmbursements) grants, for which the availability penod is one year.

Expenditures generally are recorded when a Liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting.
However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences
and claims and judgments, are recorded only when payment is due. General capital asset
acquisitions are reported as expenditures in governmental funds. Proceeds of general long-
term debt and acquisitions under capital leases are reported as other financing sources.
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CiTY OF OPA-LOCKA, FLORIDA
Notes 1o Basic Financial Statements

Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2008

Property taxes, sales taxes, utility taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, and interest associated with
the current fiscal period are all considered to be susceptible to accrua! and s¢ have been
recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period. All other revenue items are considered to
be measurable and available only when cash is received by the City

The City reports the following major governmental funds:

The General Fund is the general operation fund of the City. All general tax revenues and
other receipts that are not allocated by law or contractual agreement to some other fund
are accounted for in this fund. Many of the more important activities of the City,
including operation of the City’s general service departments; street and highway
maintenance; public safety, parks, and recreation programs, are accounted for in this
fund.

The FEMA Fund accounts for grant receipts from the Federal Emergency Management
Agency, through the State of Flonda, to fund restoration projects in relation to a declared
natural disaster.

The Safe Neighborhood Capital Projects Fund accounts for revenue and expenditures
of the CDBG and General Obligation Boads funds from Miami-Dade County.

The City reports the following major proprietary funds:

The water and sewer fund is used to account for the operation and maintenance of the
Ciry’s water and sewer systen.

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issucd prior 10 December 1,
1989, generally are followed in both the government-wide and proprietary fund financial
statements to the extent that those standards do not conflict with or contradict guidance of the
Govemnmental Accounting Standards Board. Governments also bave the option of following
subsequent private-sector guidaonce for their business-type activities and enterprise funds,
subject to the same limitation. The City has elected not to follow subsequent private-sector
guidance.

As a general rule the effect of interfund activity has been climinated from the government-
wide financial statements. Exceplions to this general rule are payments and other charges
between the City’s water and sewer function and various other functions of the government.
Elimination of these charges would distort the direct costs and program revenues reported for
the vanous functions concerned.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items.
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and
delivering goods 1o connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. The
principal operating revenues of the City’s water and sewer, solid waste and stormwater
enterprise funds, are charges to customers for sales and services. Operating expenses for
enterprise funds include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and
depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are



CITY OF OPA-LOCKA, FLORIDA
Notes to Basic Financial Statements

Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2008

reported as non-operating revenues and expenses.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City's policy to
use restricted resources first, then vnrestricted resources as they are needed.

The preparation of financial statemenis in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect amounis reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes.
Although these estimates are based on management’s knowledge of current events and
actions it may undertake in the future, they may ultimately differ from actual results.

Assets, Liabilities, and Net Assets or Fund Equity
1. Encumbrances

Encumbrances accounting, under which purchase ordets, contracts and other commitments
for the expenditure of monics are recorded in order 1o serve that portion of the applicable
appropration, is employed in the (eneral and Capital Projects Funds. Encumbrances
outstanding at the balance sheet date are canceled.

2. Deposits and Investments

The City considers cash on hand, cash with fiscal agents, demand deposits, and certificates of
deposit with and criginal matunty of (90) ninety days or less to be cash and cash equivalents.

For purposes of the statement of cash flows for proprietary fund types fund, all highly liquid
investments (including restricted assels) with mawnty of three months or less when
purchased are considered to be cash equivalents.

Investments, consisting of U.S, Government securities, and certificates of deposit with
financial institutions, are stated at cost plus accrued wterest.

3. Receivables

In the government-wide statements, receivables consist of all revenues earned at year-end and
not yetr received. The City calculates its allowance for uncollecuble using historical
collection data, specific account analvsis, and management’s judgment. Major receivables
balances for the governmental activities include franchise fees and unlity taxes, and amounts
due from other governments. Business-type activiligs report utility billings as major
receivable,
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CITY OF QPA-LOCKA, FLORIDA
Notes 1o Basic Financial Statements

Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2008

4, Ipventories

Inventories are valued at cost, which approximates market, using the first-in, and first-out
method. Inventories in the General and Enterprise Funds consist of fuel and ¢xpendable
supplies held for consurmption. The costs of Governmental Fund type inventories are recorded
as expenditures when consumed rather than when purchased. In the governmental funds,
reported inventories are offset by a fund balance reserve which indicates that they do not
constitute available spendable resources.

5. Restricted Assets

Restricted assets include cash and cash equivalents of the governmental and enterprise funds
that are legally restricted as to their use. Cash and cash equivalents are restricied for debt
service, customers’ deposits, revenue bond requirement, and sewer systermn improvements.

6. Capital Assets

Capital assets, including land, buildings, improvements, infrastructure, and equipment assets,
are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities columns in the
government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the City as assets with an
initial. individual cost of more than $500 and an initial useful life of one year or greater. Such
assets are recorded ar historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are
recorded at esttmated fair value at the date of dopation.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add two the value of the asset or
matenally extended the life of the asset are not capitalized.

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed.
Interest incurred dunng the construction phase of capital assets of business-type activities is
included as part of the capitalized value of the assets constructed.

Buildings, improvements, infrastructure and equipment assets are depreciated using the
straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives:

Assets Years
Buildings and Building [mprovements 10-50
Infrastructure Systems 30

Equipment 310
Vehicles 3-10
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CITY OF QOPA-LOCKA, FLORIDA
Notes to Basic Financial Statements

Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2008

7. Inter-fund Transactions

Activities between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements at the end
of the fiscal year are referved to as “due to/from other funds” or “advances to/from other
funds”. Any residual balances outstanding between the governmental activities and business-
type activities are reported in the government-wide financial statements as “internal
balances™.

Non-current portions of long-term inter-fund loap receivables are reported as advances within
the govermmental funds, and are offset equally by a fund balance reserve account which
indicates that they do not constitute expendable available financial resources, and therefore,
are not available for appropnatton.

Transactions among City funds that would be treated as revenues and expenditures or
expenses if they involve orgamzations external to City government are accounted for as
revenues and expenditures or expenses 1n the funds involved.

Transactions that constitute reimbursements to a fund for expenditures imitially made from it,
which are properly applicable to another fund, are recorded as expenditures in the
reimbursing fund and as reductions of expenditures in the reimbursed fund. Transactions,
which constitute the transfer of resources from a fund receiving revenues to a fund through
which the revenues are 10 be expended, are separately reported 1n the respective funds’
operating statements.

8. Deferred and Unearned Revenues

Deferred revenues in the governmental funds represent amounts due, which are measurable,
but not available. In the statement of net assels, deferred revenues represent grants and
similar items received; however, the City has not met all eligibility requirements imposed by
the provider.

9. Compensated Absences

[t is the City's policy to permit employees to accumulate, with certain limits, eamed but
unused vacation time and sick leave hours for subsequent use or for payment upon
termination, death or retirement. For government-wide statements and proprietary fund types,
these accumulations are recorded as expenses and liabilities of the appropriate fund in the
fiscal year earned. For governmental fund types, the amount of accumulated unpaid vacation
and sick leave that is payable from available resources is recorded as a hability of the
respective fund only if they have matured. for example, as a result of employee retirements
and resignanons.
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CiTtY OF OPA-LOCKA, FLORIDA
Notes to Basic Financial Statements

Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2008

10. Fund Equity

Reservations of fund balance represent amounts that are not appropriated or are legally
segregated for a specific purpose. Restrictions of net assets are limited to cutside third-party
restmictions.  Designations of fund balance represent ientative management plans that are
subject to change.

11. Net Assets

Net assets represent the difference between assets and liabilities. Net assets invested in capital
assets, net of related debt, consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced
by the outstanding balances of any borrowings used for the acquisition, construction or
improvement of those assets. Nel assets invested o capital assets, net of related debt excludes
unspemt debt proceeds.

Nel assets are reported as restricted when there are limitations imposed on their use either
through the enabling legislation adopted by the City or through external restrictions imposed
by creditors, grantors or laws or regulations of other governments.

The City first applied restricted resources when an expense is incurred for purposes for which
both restricted and unrestricted net assets are available.

12. Deferred Compensation Plan

The City offers its employees a deferred compensation plan (the “Plan”) created in accordance
with Internal Revenue Code Section 457. The Plan, available 1o all City employees, allows
them 1o defer a portion of their salary to future vears. The City’s direct involvement in the
Plan is limited to remitting the amounts withheld from employees to the Plan’s adminisirator.
The deferred compensation plan is not included in the Ciry’s financial statements.

13. Property Taxes

Property 1axes are levied on November 1™ of each year, at which time taxes become an
enforceable lien on property assessed as of the previous January 1%, Tax bills are payable
upon receipt with discounts rates of one to four percent allowed if paid prior to March 1 of
the following calendar year. Taxes become delinquent on April 1 of the vear following the
vear of assessment and State law provides for enforcement of collection of property taxes by
the sale of interest-bearing tax certificates and the seizure of personal property to satisfy
unpaid property taxes. Miami-Dade County bills and collects all property taxes for the Ciry,
and sells tax certificates for delinquent taxes.
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NOTE 2.

CITY OF OPA-LOCKA, FLORIDA
Notes to Basic Financial Statements

Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2008

The net assessed value of property, as established by the Miami-Dade County Property
Appraiser, at July 1, 2007 upon which the 2007-2008 levy was based, was approximately
$924.469 million. For the year ended September 30, 2008, the millage rate to finance general
government services was 8.0084 ($8.0084 per $1,000 of assessed 1axable vatue). The City is
permitied by the State 10 levy a maximum of 10.00 mills (S10 per S1,000 of assessed taxable
value) for general government services.

No accrual for the property tax levy becoming due in November 2008 is included 1 the
accompanying financial statements since the legal right ta reccive these taxes occurs on
November 1, 2009, and such taxes are collected to finance expenditures of the fiscal year
ending September 30, 2009,

14. New GASB Statements Adopted

During the fiscal year 2008, the City implemented GASB Statement No. 48, “Sales and
Pledges of Receivables and Future Revenues and Inira-Entity Transfers of Assets and Future
Revenues.” This statement establishes ¢riteria that governments will use 10 ascertain whether
certawn transactions should be regarded as sales of a collateralized borrowing. The statement
also includes disclosure requirements for future revenues that are pledge or sold. The City
has pledge revenues in relaton to its 1994A Capital Improvement Bonds. See Note § for
more details on the pledge revenues.

During the fiscal year 2008, the City implemented GASB Statement No. 50, “Pension
Disclosure.” This siatement more closely aligns the fipancial reporting requirements for
pension with those for other postemployment benefits. The City participates in the State of
Florida Retirernent System, a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit plan or defined
contribution plan which covers substantiaily all of the City's full-time employees. The Ciry
does not offer any post-employment benefits other than pension to its employees. This
Statement did not have an impact on the City’s financial statements, including required
disclosures.

DEFICIT FUND EQUITY

The City reported fund balance deficit of (5664,346) for its Safe Neighborhood Capital Projects
Fund. The City also reported fund balance deficit of {(S278,140), ($129,737), and ($144,471) for
its Opa-locka Police Youth Academy, Crime Prevention and STOP/VAWA Special Revenue
Funds, respectively. The City will correct these fund balance deficits by way of appropriating
funds from the general fund in its fiscal year 2008-2009 budget.
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NOTE 3.

CIT1Y OF OPA-LOCKA, FLORIDA
Notes o Basic Financial Statements

Fiscal Year Ended Septernber 30, 2008

DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

As of September 30, 2008 the City’s cash are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits,
and short termn investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of
acquisition.

Deposits

All deposits with financial institutions are fully insured or collateralized as required by the
City Commission. The deposits are covered by federal depository insurance and, for the
amounti in excess of such federal deposiory insurance, by the State of Flonda’s Public
Deposits Act (“the Act”). Provisions of the Act require that public deposits may only be made
at qualified public depositories. The Act requires each qualified public depository to deposit
with the State Treasurer eligible collateral equal to or in excess of the required collateral as
determined by the provisions of the Act. In the event of a failure by a qualified public
depositary, losses, in excess of federal depository insurance and proceeds from the sale of the
securities pledged by the defaulting depository, are assessed against the other qualified public
depositories of the same iype as the depository in default.

Investments

The City is authorized to make direct investments in U.S. government, federal agency, and
instrumentality obligations at a price not to exceed the market price at the time of purchase.
In addition, the City may invest in certificates of financial institutions insured by the United
States government or agencies thereof and repurchase agreements.

As of September 30, 2008 the City has no investments.



NOTE 4.

CITY OF OPA-LOCKA, FLORIDA

Notes 1o Basic Financial Statements

Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2008

DISAGGREGATION OF RECEIVABLE AND ACCOUNTS PAYABLE BALANCES
Receivable balances as of September 30, 2008, were as follows:
Due from Allowance
Other for
Accounls Taxes  governments  Others  uncollectibles Net
Goveinmental activities:
General $- §796,230 $193.567 $254,223 $(422,494) $821.526
FEMA - - 838,920 - - 838,920
Safe - - 1,363,445 - - 1,363,445
neighborhood
Nonmajor funds - - 252,362 - 252362
Total governmental
actvities S- 8796230  $2,64R8.294 §254.223 $(422,494) 53,276,253
Business-type activities:
Water and sewer  $1,332,219 5- S- S- $(191,507) $1,140,712
Stormwater 106,241 - - - (21,555) 34,686
Solidwaste - - - - - -
Totat business-1ype
activities $1.438,460 8- $- S- $(213,062) §1,225398

Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses balances as of September 30, 2008, were as follows:

Governmental activities:
General
FEMA
Safe neighborbood
Nonmajor funds

Total government-type activities

Business-type activities:
Water and sewer
Starmwater
Solidwaste

Total business-type activities

Salanes Other
and Accrued

Vendors Benefits Expenses Tatal
$479.661 $364,444 S- $844 105
1232475 - - 1,232,475
50,661 - - 50,661
46,316 - - 46,316
$1,809,113 $364,444 S- §2,173,557
560,869 S- $22,933 $83,802
75 - - 75
82,525 - 20,000 102,525
$143,468 3- $42,933 $186,402
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NOTE 5.

CI1TY OF OPA-LOCKA, FLORIDA
Notes to Basic Financial Statements

Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2008

INTERFUND BALANCES AND TRANSFERS

Transfers are used io (1) move revenues from the fund thai siatute or budget requires collecting
them to the fund that statute or budget requires to expend them or (2) use unrestricted revenues
collected in the General Fund to finance various programs accounted for in other funds in
accordance with budgeiary authorizations. These wansfers are eliminated in the consclidation, by
column, for the Governmental Activities. Inter-fund balances result from the time lag between
the dates that (1) inter-fund goods and services are provided or reimbursable expenditures occur,
(2) transactions are recorded in the accounting system and (3) payments between funds are made.

Interfund balances as of September 30, 2008 consisted of the following:

Receivable Fund Pavable Fund Amount Purpose
General fund Water and sewer $1,172,954 Pravide temporary
resources
General fund Nenmajor funds 63,349  Provide temparary
Tesources
Total §1,236,303

Interfund transfers for the year ended September 30, 2008, consisted of the following:

Transfer in: Transfer out Amount Pumose
General fund Capital Imp. Debt Service $1,172,933  Transfer excess funds
Capnal projects  General fund 2,107,635 To fund capital projects

Total $3,280,568
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CITY OF OPA-LOCKA, FLORIDA
MNotes to Basic Financial Statements

Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2008

NOTE 6. CAPITAL ASSETS

The following is a summary of changes in capital assets for the year ended September 30, 2008:

Balance Increases/ Balance
Ociober 1. 2007 Adiustments Decreases Seplember 30. 2008
Governmental Activities:
Capital asse1s nol being depreciated:

Land s 2805291 8 - 5 g 2,805,291

Construction in progress - 600,255 600,255
Total assets not being depreciated 2,805,251 600,255 3,405,546
Capital assets being depreciated:

Buildings and improvements 2,865,855 2,086 2.867.94]

Furniture and egquipment 2,858,067 573,076 3,431,143

In frastructure 15,775,694 3,081,643 18,857.337
Total assets being depreciated 21499616 3,656 805 25156421
Less accumulated depreciation for.

Buildings and improvements (2,436,075} {41.433) (2.477.508)

Furniture and equipment (2171381 (1627443 (2,334.125)

Infrastructun: (11,095,074} (713.665) (11,308,739
Total accumulated depreciation (135.702,530) (917.842) (16,620,372)
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 5,797,086 2,738,963 §,536,049
Governmenta! activities capital assels, net S §.602.377 § 3339218 S S 11,941,595
Business-Type Activities:

Capital Assets not being depreciated:

Land S 14,762 % -5 S 14,762
Total assets not being depreciated 14,762 - 14.762
Capital assels being depreciated:

Buildings and improvements 591.006 - $91.006

Unlity plant and systems 18,435,697 316,249 18,751,946

Furniture and equipment 2,677,762 - 2677762
Tolal assels being depreciated 22,104,465 316,249 22420714
Less accumulated depreciation for:

Building and improvements (1.036,189) - (1,016,189)

Utility plant and systems (5,955,068) (447,375) (6,402,443)

Furniture and equipment (3,128,484) {59.90%) (3,388,339
Total accumulaled depreciation (10,319,741) (507,280} {10,827,021)
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 11.784,724 (191,031} 11,593,693
Business-type aclivilies capilal assets. nel ) 11,799,486 § (191.031) § 3 11,608,455
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements
Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2008

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the city as follows:

Governmental activities:

General government $83,564
Public safety 95 481
Transportation 727,387
Parks and recreation 11,410

Total $917.842

Business-type activities:

Water and sewer $452,039
Stormwater 55,241
Solidwaste -

Tortal S$507.280

NOTE 7. LEASES
Operating Leases
The City leases building and office facilities under noncancelable operating leases. Total costs

for such leases were $266,567 for the year ended September 30, 2008. The future minimum lease
pavments for the leases are as follows:

Year Ending September 30 Amount
2009 5493722
2010 493,722
2011 493,722
2012 432954
2013 412,698
2014-2016 1,238,094

Total 53,564,912

Capital Leases

The Ciry has entered into lease agreements as lessee for financing the acquisition of various vehicles.
The City also financed the acquisition of water meter reading equipment. These lease agreements
qualify as capital leases for accounting purposes and, therefore, have been recorded at the present
value of their future minimum lease payments as of the inception dates. Future minimum payments
under the lease agreements and the present value of minimum paymeants as of September 30, 2008 are
as follows:
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CITY OF QOPA-LOCKA, FLORIDA
Notes to Basic Financial Statements

Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2008

Governmental Business-type

Year Ending September 30, Activities Activities
2009 $162,867 $428,535
2010 138,095 422978
2011 102,641 422 978
2012 7,707 422978
2013 422978
2014-2016 1,268,936
Total munimum lease payments 411,310 3,389,381
Less: amount representing mlerest (19,359} (525217)
Preseat value of minimum lease payments S$391,951 $2,864,166

The assets acquired through the capital leases are as follows:

Governmenial Business-type

Activities Activities
Machinery and equipment $743,185 $45,635
Utility plant and systems - 2,968,650
Less: Accumulated depreciation (334,695) (28,846)
Net $408,450 $2,985.439
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CI1TY OF OPA-LOCKA, FLORIDA
Notes to Basic Financial Statements

Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2008

NOTE 8. LONG-TERM DEBT

Long-term liability activity for the year ended September 30, 2008 was as follows:

Balance Balance
September 30, September Due within
2007 Additions Reductions 30, 2008 One year
Governmental activities:
Capital Improvement Revenue

Bond, Series 1994A $6,250,000 $- $(210,000) $6,040,000 §225,000
Other liabihities:

Capital leases obligation 496,145 47.650 (151,844) 391951 151,269

Compensated absences 975,429 284 735 (284,504) 975,660 135,482
Total governmental activities

long-term liabilities 87,721,574 $332,385 $(646,348) S7.40761) $511,751
Business-type activities:

State Revolving Loan No.

CS120800020 $173,361 S- $(26,574) $146,787 $27,494
State Revolving Loan No.

CS12080003P 1,309,244 - (67,317) 1,241,927 69,371
State Revolving Loan No.

WW8R00050 323,118 2,052,024 (117,956} 2,257,186 108,163
Total loans payable 1,805,723 2,052,024 (211,847) 3,645,900 203,028
Other liabilitics:

Capital lease 3,169,436 - (305,270) 2,864,166 312.037

Liability 1o Florida

Department of 385,596 - (68,570) 327,026 63,295
Transportation
Accrued compensated 113,067 6,095 (50,079) 69,083 25,548
absences
Total business-type activities
long-term debt $5,483.822  §2,058,119 $(635,766) 56,906,175 $605,908

For governmental activities, compensated absences are generally liquidated by the General Fund.
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CI1TY OF OPA-LOCKA, FLORIDA
Notes 10 Basic Financial Staternents

Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2008

Long-Term Debt — Governmental Activities

Long-term debt of the City’s governmental activities, excluding compensated absences and
capital leases, include the Series 1994A Capital Improvement Revenue bonds, bearing annual
interest rates ranging from approximately 5.0% to 6.125%, and are payable from a pledge of the
City’s ¥ cent sales tax and shared revenues from the State of Flornida. Annual principal
installments range from $125,000 in 1998 to $570,000 through 2024. The combined total % cent
sales tax and shared revenues for the year ended September 30, 2008 is S1,558,282 while total
debt service payments is $599,219.

Long-Term Debt - Business-Type Activities

Long-term debt of the City’s business-type activities, excluding compensated absences and
capital leases, consists of the following:

a) Stare Revolving Loan Note Project No. CS120800020 - for $480,816, bearing interest art rates
ranging from 2.89% to 3.75% due in 20 annual payments of $32,365, including interest, from
July 31, 1994 ihrough July 31, 2013, secured by a lien on Pledge Revenues as defined by the
State Revolving Fund lean agreement.

b) State Revolving Loan Note Project No. CS12080003P as amended - for §1.827 million,
bearing interest at a rate of 2.56% and 1.54%, duc in 40 semi-annual payments of $53,240,
including interest, from June 15, 2003 through December 135, 2022, secured by a lien on
Pledge Revenues as defined by the State Revolving Fund loan agreement.

¢) State Revolving Loan Note Project No. WW800050 - for $2.375 mullion, bearing interest at a
rate of 1.53%, due in 40 sgmi-annual payments of $71,143, including interest, secured by a
lien on Pledge Revenues as defined by the State Revolving Fund loan agreement.

d} Seulement with the Florida Departroent of Transportation (FDOT) - for $632,954, bearing an

implied interest rate of 4.11%, due in 119 monthly payments of $3.319, including interest,
from January 2001 through November 2010,

-319-



CITY OF OPA-LOCKA, FLORIDA
Notes to Basic Financial Statements

Fiscal Year Ended Seprember 30, 2008

Debt Service Requirements

The annual requirements to amortize all long-term debt outstanding at September 30, 2008, other
than the liability for accumulated vacation and sick leave and the capital leases, are as follows:

Fiscal Year Governmental Activities Business-type Activities
ending
September 30, Principal Interest Principal Interest

2009 $225,000 $376,075 5268,323 558,850
2010 240,000 359,800 289,540 54,886
2011 255,000 342,475 293,605 50,821
2012 275,000 323,925 297,774 46,652
2013 290,000 304,150 301,403 42,377
2014-2018 1,780,000 1,197,897 1,089.74] 154,637
2019-2023 2,405,000 560,591 1,131,199 59,389
Thereafter 570,000 17,456 291,341 2,580

$6,040,000 53,482,369 $3,972,926 §470,192

Summary of Debt Covenants

Series 1994ACapital [mprovement Revenue Bonds — Debt service is provided by a pledge of
guaranteed state revenue sharing funds, local option gas tax reveoues, and the half-cent sales tax.
Reserves must be maintained equal to the maxamum bond service requirement. At September 30,
2008 the City had on deposit with the trusiee for these bonds, a reserve account insurance policy
which unconditionally and irrevocably guarantees the full and complete payment required 10 be
made by or on the behalf of the Ciry.

Pledge Revenues - the Ciry’s agreement under the State of Florida Revolving Loan Fund Program
requires the City 10 generate Pledged Revenues, as defined by the agreement, from the services
furnished by its water and sewer systems equal to or exceeding 1.15 times the sum of the
scmiannual loan payments. As of Sepiember 30, 2008 the City is in compliance with this
requirement.

The amount of long-term debt that can be incurred by the Cirty is limited by the charter of the
City. Totar general obligation bond of the Ciry outstanding in any on¢ fiscal year can be no
greater than 15% of the assessed value of taxable property as of the beginning of the fiscal year,
As of September 30, 2008 the amount of bonds outstanding and notes payable exclusively from
the revenues of a municipal project was less than 3% of property assessments as of September 30,
2008.

Bonds payable exclusively from the revenue of a municipal project may be 1ssued and
outstanding without regard 10 the 15% limitation; however, such an issue would be subject to the
limitations tmposed by the City's charter with respect to restrictions on bonds parity with or
junior to the Series 1994A Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds.



CITY OF OPA-LOCKA, FLORIDA
Notes ta Basic Financial Statermenis

Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2008

NOTE 9. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN

Florida Retirement Systems Plans - The City participates in the State of Florida Retirement System (the
“System’), a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit plan or defined contnibution retirement
plan which covers substantially all of the City’s full-time employees. The FRS was established in 1970,
by consolidating several employee retirement systems. All eligible employees as defined by the State
who were hired after 1970 and those emploved prior to 1970 that efect to be enrolled, are covered by
the System.

Benetit provisions and all other requirements are established by Chapter 121, Flonda Statutes and any
amendments thereto can be made only by an act of the Florida Legislature. Employees of the FRS may
participaie in either the Public Employee Optional Retirement Program (the “Investment Plan™), a
defined contnbution retirement program or in the defined benefit retirement plan (the “Pension Plan™).
Eligible members of the [nvestment Plan are vested after one year of service and are directed 10 choose
their investment product with a third party administrator selected by the State Board of Administration,

Employees participating in the Pension Plan have their benefits computed on the basis of age, average
final compensation and service credit. Benefits under the Pension Plan vest afier six vears of service.
Employees who retire at or afier age 62, with ten years of credited service, are entitled to an annnal
retirement benefit, payable monthly for life. A post-retirement health insurance subsidy is also provided
to ehigible retired employees through the FRS defined beuefits retirement plan.

Sumimary of Flonda Retirement System Contnbutions,
Covered Payroll and Percentage of Covered Payroll

2008 2007 2006
Covered payroll $6,770,72¢  §6,524,545  §5,678,123
Required Contributions 896,318 1,029,819 667,147
% of Covered Payroll 13.2% 15.8% 11.7%

The City 1s required to contribute amounts necessary to pay benefits when due as defined by State
Statute. Such contribution requirements ranged between 12.85% and 12.535% of gross salaries during
fiscal year 2008. For the fiscal years ended September 30, 2008, 2007 and 2006, the City contributed
100% of the required contributions.

A copy of the System’s anpual report can be obtained by writing to the Division of Retirement, Cedars

Executive Center, 2639-C North Monroe Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1560 or by calling (850)
448-5706.
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CITY OF OPA-LOCKA, FLORIDA
Notes 10 Basic Funancial Statements

Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2008

NOTE 10. RELATIONSHIP WITH THE COUNTY

In 1855, the Florida Legislature approved and submitted to a general election a constitutional
amendment designed to give a new form of government to the County of Mianu-Dade. The County s,
in effect, a municipality with governmental powers effective upon more than 29 cities, including the
City, and the unincorporated areas. It has not displaced or replaced the cities, but supplements them.
The County can take over particular activities of the Ciry’s operations if (1) the services fall below
minimum standards set by the County Comimnission, or (2) with the consent of the governing body of the

City.

Since its inception, the County has assumed responsibility for a number of functions, including county-
wide police services, complementing county-wide fire protection; consolidated two-tier court system;
creation of the various surface rransportation programs; iostallation of a central traffic control computer
system; merging all public transportation systems into a county sysiem; and centralization of the
property appraiser and tax cotlector functions.

NOTE 11. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Contingencies

The City participates in a number of Federal and State grant programs. These programs are subject to
financial and compliance audits by the grantors or their representatives. The possible disallowance of
any item charged to the program or request for the return of already collected funds may be disallowed
by the grantor agency. Any potential disallowed amounts cannot be determined at this time. No
provision for any hability that may result has been made in the financial statements. The City expects
such amounts, if any, to be immatenal.

Various claims and lawsuits, which arose in the normal course of operations, are pending against the
City. In the opinion of management, based on the advice of the City's Attorney, the outcome of these
actions is not anticipated to have a material eftect on the financial position and results of operations of
the Ciry.

Commitments

Water Supply and Sewer Services Conrtract

In February 1983, the City entered into an agreement with Miami-Dade Water and Sewer Authority (the
“Authority™) for the purpose of providing to the City all of its potable water supply and sewer services
for a period of thirty (30) vears subject 10 termination at any time by operation of law or by mutual
consent of the City and the Authority. For the year ended September 30, 2008 and 2007, the City
purchased water and sewer scrvices totahng $2,078,040 and $3,435,617 respectively, from the
Authority under the terms of this agreement.



CiTY OF OPA-LOCKA, FLORIDA
Notes to Basic Financial Statements

Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2048

Solid Waste Coliection and Disposal Contract

On November 1, 2006, the City entered inte a Residential Solid Waste Collection and Disposal
Agreement (the Agreement) with a third party contractor. The Agreement is for a period of three years
terminating on September 30, 2009 and is renewable automatically for additional one (1) year periods
vnless either the contractor or the Ciry shall notify the ather of its desire not to extend at least sixry (60}
days prior to the termination date of the original contract term or any renewal term.

NOTE 12. DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN

The City offers its employees a deferred compensation plan (the “Plan®), which is administered by two
administrators. The portion of the plan administered by the International City Management Association
Retirement Corporation (“ICMA”) was created in accordance with Internal Revenue Code Section 457
(a qualified plan). The other portion constitutes a nonqualified plan benefit and is administered by the
Equitable Life Assurance Society (“Equitable”). The Plan, available to all City employees, permuts
them to defer a portion of their salary until future years. Participation in this plan is optional. The
deferred compensation is not available to employees until termination, retirement, death or
unforeseeable emergency.

All assets and income of the Plan are held in trust for the exclusive benefits of the participants. The
City makes no investment decisions and has no fiduciary responsibilities regarding the Plan; therefore,
the assets and liabilities of the Plan are not included in the City’s financial statements as September 30,
2008

NOTE 13. RISK MANAGEMENT

The government is exposed to various risks of loss related 10 torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction
of assets; errors and orissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters for which the City carries
commercial insurance. The City has not bad a significant reduction in insurance coverage from
coverage in the prior year by major categories of risk, and sculed claims have not exceeded the City’s
retention and excess coverage in force for each of the past three years.

NOTE 14. REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Budget and actual comparison for the General Fund and the FEMA Fund are presented in the Required
Supplementary Information section of the report. Budget and actual comparisons for other funds are
reflected in the Combining Statements section.

NOTE 15. NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

The Government Accounting Standards Board ((GASB) issued Statement No. 45, Accounting and
Financial Reporting by Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions, Statement No.
49, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pollurion Remediation Obligations, and Statement No. 51,
Accounting and Fmancial Reporting for Intangible Assets. The City has not elected early
implementation and, therefare, has not determined the financial impact of these new pronounccments.
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Ci1TY OF OPA-LOCKA, FLORIDA

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
GENERAL FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2008
Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Revenues: Original Final Actual (Negative)
Taxes:
Property taxes S 7,133,530 § 7,133,330 S 7441927 5 308.397
Utility taxes 922320 922320 §94.359 (27,961
Communications service taxes 670,300 670,900 637,712 (33.188)
Local option gas tax 316,950 316,950 295,194 (21,756)
Local business taxes 266,900 266,900 281.975 13,075
Franchise fees 2,217,900 2,217,900 1,540,751 (677,149)
Pernits, fees and licenses 519,500 519,500 385,123 {134377)
Intergovernmental 687,395 687,395 292,451 (394,944)
Charges for services 42,660 43,160 37.010 (6.150)
Fines and forfeitures 130,700 130,700 216,124 85,424
Interest 265,500 265,500 113,163 (152.337)
Other 97,810 97,310 133,168 35,859
Tolal revenues 13,272,065 13,272,065 12,268,958 (1,003,107)
Expenditures:
Current:
General government:
City commission 91,5350 98,890 89,992 3.858
City manager 363.681 362,781 402.210 (39.429)
Ciry clerk 279,816 340,826 37532 (34,495
City artomey 702,309 171,709 262,904 {91,195)
Finance/Utility bilhng 506,279 624,079 364,649 59,430
Information technology 239222 238,722 215871 22,851
Human resources 130,047 193,247 178,892 14,355
Building licenses 410,900 371.130 363,989 7.161
Commuaity development 673,920 375,625 361,804 13,821
Total general government 3,417,724 2,777,029 2,815,632 (38,6033
Public safety:
Police 4,518,150 5,150,745 5,036,870 113,875
Code enforcement 266,895 344,995 347033 (2,033)
Total public safety 4,785,045 5,495,740 5,383,903 111,837
Public works
Administration 269 444 284,244 261,170 23,074
Street maintenance 565,360 706,960 839,853 {132,893)
Building maintenance 271,305 283,305 274,605 8.700
Vehicle maintenance 429,353 523,655 643,226 {119,571)
Total public works 1,535,464 1,798,164 2,018 854 {220,690)

{Continued)

See notes to budgetary companson schedule.



CI1TY OF OPA-LOCKA, FLORIDA

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
GENERAL FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2008

{Continued)
Variance with
Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Parks and recrealion:

Parks 1,208,305 1,289,705 1,027,425 262,280
Special events 40,500 77.990 76,870 1.120

Total parks and recreation 1,248,803 1,367,695 1,104,295 263,400
Non-deparimental 1,355,503 1,746,913 1,962.802 (215,889)
Total non-departmental 1,555,503 1,746,913 1,962,802 (215,889)
Total expenditures 12,542,541 13,185,541 13,285,486 (59.945)
Excess of revenues over expenditures 729524 86,524 (1,016,528) (1,103,052)

Other financing sources (uses):

Capital lease proceeds - - 47,650 47,650
Transfers in 1,025,530 1,025,350 1,172,934 147384
Transfers out (919.490) {2,164,625) (2,107,635) 56,990
Net change in fund balance 8353584 (1,052,551) (1,903,579) {851.028)
Fund balance, beginmng 7,152,608 7,152,608 7,152,608 -
Fund balance, end ) 7,988,192 3 6,100,057 § 5,245.029 § (851.028)

See notes to budgetary comparison schedule.
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C1TY OF OPA-LOCKA, FLORIDA

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

Revenues,
Granis
Interest

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current;
Public safety
Total expendifures

Deficiency of revenues over expenditures

QOther financing sources (uses):
Transfers in
Trans{ers out

Tolal other tinancing sources

Net change in fund balance

Fund balance, beginnng

Fund balance, end

FEMA FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2008

Budgeted Amounts

Variance
With Final
Budget
Positive

QOriginal Final Actual (Negative)
3 - $ - 5 261373 0§ 261,375
- - 7,686 7,686

- - 269,061 269,061
- 20,200 281,554 (261,354)
20,200 281,554 (261,354)

- {20,200) (12,493) 7,707

- (20,200) {12,493) 7.707

611,028 all,028 6]1.028 -

$ 611028 S 590,828 § 598,535 § 1,707

See notes to budgetary comparison schedule.
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CITY OF OPA-LOCKA, FLORIDA

NOTES TO BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

NOTE 1. BUDGETS AND BUDGETARY ACCOUNTING

Chapter 166, Florida Statutes, requires that all municipalities prepare, approve, adopt and execute an annual
budget for funds as may be required by law or by sound financial practices and generally accepted accounting
principles. The budgets control the levy and the expenditure of money for City purposes in the ensuing fiscal
year. The budgeting process is based on estimates of revenues and expenditures. The City budgets are
prepared on a modified-accrual basis or accrual basis of accounting in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles.

The City follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial statements.

1.

A

Prior to August 1, the City Manager submits to the City Commission a proposed operating budger for
the fiscal vear commencing the following October 1. The operating budget includes proposed
expenditures and the means of financing them.

Public hearings are conducted to oblain taxpayer comments.
Prior 1o October 1, the budget is legally enacted through passage of an ordinance,

Budgetary control is maintained at the departmental and fund level, with finance department
providing support to departments in the administration of their budgers. In accordance with the Ciry’s
budget transfer policy, the City Manager is authorized to transfer budgeted amaunts within any fund
or functions; however, any supplemental appropriations or revisions that amend the total expenditure
of any fund must be approved by the City Cammission. The City also maintains an encumbrance
accounting systern as one technique of accomplishing budgetary control. Encumbrances outstanding
at the balance sheet date are canceled.

Annual operating budgets are legally adopted for the General, Special Revenue, Debt Service, Capital
Projects, and Enterprise Funds. AH budgets are on a basis consistent with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America. The legal level of budgetary control is the
department level. This is the level at which expenditures may not exceed appropriations.

All annual appropriations lapse at fiscal year end.

The final budget includes supplemental appropnations which have the effect of adjusting the original
budgel. General fund supplemental appropriations amounted 1o 51,888,135 for the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2008 which consist primarily of:

a. $1,245,135 to fund the City’s match for the Curtis/Perviz capital project;

b. $424,500 for personnel costs related to increase police visibility and code enforcement
acriviries;

$100,000 for additional fuel expendirures due to general increase in fuel costs;

$118,890 for special events related expenses;

$128,507 for roads and streets maintenance equipment; and

$87.250 for human services costs

~ o oo
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NOTE 2.

CITY OF OPA-LOCKA, FLORIDA

NOTES TO BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES IN EXCESS OF APPROPRIATIONS

For the year ended September 30, 2008 expenditures exceeded appropriations in the city
manager, city clerk, city attorney, and public works departmems of the general by $39,429,
$34,495, §91,195, and $220,690, respectively, and in the public works department of the fema
fund by $261,354. The overexpenditures were funded by available tund balance in the case of the
general fund and greater than anticipated revenues in the case of the fema fund.
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Nonmajor Governmental Funds
Special Revenue Funds

Special revenue funds are used to account for revenues denved from specific sources that are
legally restricted to expenditures for particular purposes.

Police Special Law Eoforcement — accounts for the receipt and disbursement of the State’s
special law enforcement trust fund, fines and forfeirures.

Boy Scout — accounts for the proceeds from donations io the City’s Police Explorer Program.

Opa-locka Police Youth Academy (OPYA, formerly DJJ Aftercare Program} - to account for
revenue received from the half percent sales surtax to support transportation operations,
rransportation related capital projects and acquisition of capital transporiation assets.

Crime Prevention — accounts for the special slate grants to the City 10 develop a crime program
preveation program.

STOP/VAWA GRANT- accounts for grants from the Department of Children and Families 1o
provide domestic violence law enforcement services (o victims.

[ocal Law Enforcement Block Grant — {LLEBG) — accounts for grants to the City from the
Departinent of Justice to reduce crime and improve public satety.

DEP Waste and Water and South Florida Water Management Grant — accounts for grant
money received from the Department of Environmental Protection 10 assist in the upgrade of the
City’s drainage systems.

Community Redevelopment Agency — accounts for the redeveloprent within the City.
Debt Service Fund

Capital Improvement Debt Service — accounts for the sinking fund requirements ot the Series
1994 A Capral Improvement Revenue Bonds.



{panunuoe)

|ﬂu~1l

FCETYY S 1970 S 696'LE $ 0TYTol § sIs'LL S 6Ir99l $ S3dUElEq PUI pue sani[Iger] [elo |
1507668 (ILrRRL) (Lei'ecl) (Or1'8L2) SIFLL 6FI1T19 saaumeg purg ol
(LLy'wrD) {LeL'otTl) (or1'8L7) - = paasasaIury
- - - - - - 201098 13 (]
150'665 volepodsuel |
) ) B - SIFLI GrIT19 Kages anjqng
JO) paaIasay
SAONVTVE aNnd
0L ey RELT161 20L7L91 094°08¢ nnl 0RTSM sAqel] mol
- RELTSI TZa'591 09L°6LE 001 150°501 spunjJoyio o1 on(g
£0L'Cy $ - $ PRI § 0007 $ - § 62 $ elf panaade pue ajqeded sumoady
SALLITEvIT
PSETEY § LyTL § 696'Lt $ 0290l & SIS'Ll L D | $ 512558 010,
126 FL - Yol 18 - 6TV 991 s1uajeAnba YSED pILE (ST PAOLISOY
765%7Z C16° L1 - Spuny 12410 Woaj angg
188°1L LOTL 696'Ly 9ze'1T N - [EURERICUAIRARY]
- g - g - g - g - g - [ ysea pagood w Lunba pue ysey
SLASSY
Nw] WRIned g UOTPUIADT ] WeInolj nong ADY IR TER NI TG
uonBLIodsuBL ], VAAVAMOLS Iy RETEFEITEY MET
Ira [r120dg

spuny Inuasdy [edg

8007 '0f YAFAWALJLAS

SANNA TY INTJWNATAOD HOMVINNON
LHAHS FONVIVH ONINIFGWOD

VAIBOTA ‘VADOT-¥vdQ A0 ALID



IQ mi

896'590'7 $ TEFPRL g § 9tz § 9bIlire $ - $
£6S'RbL SL0°09¢ 9¢T 1092 -
(O£ {687 = - ZI0'€9T -
SL00ME RLO9E - - -
160°668 - - - -
00R'8L - 2¢L - -
CLOLIL] PSLPRE - PELFS -
OS0TTLT vSL S - PEIFS -
91¢'9¥ § - $ ¥ - s - g - g
890°590°C § CEv'vrL $ § 9T S Orl'LrE G )
LSIETT | £15°059 : ;
o065 9T 96 1°LPE -
FANAYS 616°€11 - . -
- $ $ - $ - § - R
Spun INMAIIN 10T wmdoPAIpaY JUHUIDIOJUY [TEITR AT Y yunddantduon
[EIUIWIOABA0 Ty uamanacdung Lrunue)y Men AN BAL WAISAG
solewuon 1eide) B30 EPLIDJ JIRMIIEE AN
g yinog Pl

Spun, ANUIAIY [R5IIAG

8007 '0€ ¥AGWILJAS

(panunue;y)
SANDA TV LNIWNETAOD HONvIWNON
LAAHS INVTVYE ONINIAWOD

VUIIOT ‘VID0T1-VAQ 40 ALID

SOOUR[RG PUNJ PUR §23

$33ue|eq punj Rjo ],
PRAlaRaIUn
INALDE 10 I(]
uoliepodsuen]
A13188 211Qn(
“.—O.._ _uu_.r_.u,,..um
SADNVIVE ANNA

el o]
SPULY 1010 0] ong]
sonifiqel] pardadae pue sjqeied sunosoy
SALLITIavIT

HEEEURTAT

siusjeAalnba yseo pue

10 PANLSDY
SPUT] 10 WOy ang

13U SARAIDITY

yseo pajood u Ayinba pur ysen
SLASSY



|_m|

(ponuyuos)

15076065 $ ULEPPLY $ (LLL'eTl) $ (OPI'REY) £ SIpLl $ ori'1y $ uipoa aurjeq pun
636°Th | (Lt pr ) (686001 {8z SItLI SpN'op ujuuidaq aouejeq puny
9095y - (85187} (FARENFA] 3 1S 2DUE|EG puny Ul IBUEYD JIN

= = = - - . S2UNOS FUIUEUL) IDYIO [RIO ]
- - - - - - N0 SIajsuml Y,
- - - - - - ul sIypsuel |,
:$20an08 Juraveuny 10y

790795 b < (8¥L82) iesio - FOTSI ) 94M)1pudd X a0 SINUIAL
3o (Aduapyop) ssaaxg

- - 609'6L1 FPO 70 = S6TL sarnppusdxo ey |,

= - - - gm.).:ﬂ.._:—

- - - - - - tedisuis g
ALIS 1G]

- - 609°6L1 FFD'TOE - §62°¢L Aigges 2gng
”._:.J..E:U
saampuadxy

9095k - 1987051 TELOFY - 66E'TT SaNUAAdL R0,
- - - - - - IEi[Te)

_ _ _ - - O_ M.V _mu.mu::

790°9%¢ § - g 19%°051 $  TELOPI ¢ - § £30°81 g [RIUMULIDAGR IO
_.r,n-z_._m._.fo”—

] ST (TN UOHUIAID] areIfeag IN00G A0H IEITERFIT
ugyeLindsoel § YMVAOLS UL LB Y AT
rra [eiaadg

spunyj anudady maadg

2007 "0 YAGWILJLAS ATAND AV HTELL HO4

SANNA TV.LNIWNATAOD JOrVINNON
SHINVIVE ANMNJ NI SHONVHD ANY STUNLIANII X "SANNTATAE 40 INFWALY.LS DNINIFGINOD

VAo ‘vII0T-VdQ 40 ALED



|NW|

LO5 8L $ RLOOYL b s 9tt $ CiI0g9g $ - 5

£80°6ZL b9 L9% - 9t TI0°e9e -

0ps'61 (99¢°£00) . : - -

(ceezei’ny  (ggecl'n - - - =

Y AN (€E6°TL1°1) : . - -

CLhTol | 19596 - : - 3

ITIETaN 61T 665 = : :

61T 6%¢ 617°68¢ L - - -

00001t onn' it - - - -

8P6'EPS - - . .

OpPoree 985 H95" - - - -

0ZY0l oL = - -

0ZO'OECT $  TRTREST & - 5 - ¥ - § - $
Spunyg EETEWETSRTVElq| JUILA013AIpa Y] [ENTERN TG TUDWIBEUR Y Jusaaoadia)

[ELLIDLUUIIACD) TuddA0.cdwy Qiunuwo])y ME JDIRAN WIISAS
Ao[riuuoy mnde) |r307] TP IR AIIERAN

1elo ], mog d3d

SPUNL  IMUdAIY [r1adg

8007 "0 MAYIWILLAIAS QIANT YVIA IHL Y0

(pAnunuo)
SANN TVINTANTIAOD HOMYINON

SHONYTYE AN NI SEONVHD ANV STUNLIANAd X SHANTAZ Y JO LNTWFLLY.LS DNINIEWOD

VAROTY ‘VIDOT-VAQ 10 ALLD)

Bupua 2ouriEq puny
Buauidaq oougeq pun g
aourjeq puny w 23ueys 1aN

£a0In0$ SUIAUBUL L0110 [BI0],
N0 SIYRGRL)
Ul L SUeL ),

15221008 Juidueuy 1A

sunpuadxd 1340 SaNuSAdl
19 {Acuaayop) ssaoxq

soumipuadxa o],
152210
Jrdisutg
SODLALDYS _ﬁ_Uc
Aapws npqng
DNy
samupuadyy

SANUDADL MO L

IO

153101U)

reuatiaaodiau)
ISINUIADY



Imml

{panunuon)y
$ SIFL § slrLl $ SIFLl g 0Ll S 6kl S SPOOF $ Svoav S pua ‘adurieq pun,|
SIvLl SipLl SIvLl : SPO'9F NIET SPO'Op Buuidoq “souefeq puny
- 2 - OL'SI rol'sl » - asue|eq puiy u oduryd PN
y— > E = T - N {=osn) sasanos Julauruy 1aylo (g0
= = = o - - . - INO SIAJFURL],
s . - = = . - W S1D)Swel |,
(sasn) sasinos Juduruy 10410
- - - OIS PO1S] - - sasmipundyd 1bA0
sanuaaaL Jo {£oua1djap) ss3%g
= - St Ll S6T'L 0SLvC 0SL'FT soanypuadxa (B10 |,
- - - - - - - £)2011% pur sAemydty
- - - SSH' Ll 60L 0sLte 05L'FT Liages aqng
quaLng
sunppuady)
- F (1$€7) 66£°TT 05L'pC 0L SANUIAN {RI0 |
E - - - - - 12O
- . - {(pep) SIE'Y 0sL'y 08L°p 15200u]
$ - $ - $ - §  (e'n $ £RO'8I § 00002 $ 00007 g [FINMULDAOT I |
S3NUNADY
GAanemN) ICITELY oWy NS BAnEsN Ry mulg EuS0
aansod sjunowy pa)adpng 3Ap1504 sjunoury paladpnyg
18png wipng
TR RTINN 1RULL AL
IUB[IEA IOUBLIE A
1n03g Ang JUAIIDIoUT MET |E133dg

8007 0L YALWALJAS AFAND dVIA AHL ¥Od
SANNA ANNTATU TYIIIIS YOMYINNON

AVALIV GNV 1L3DAND - SIONYTYEH UNNA NI SADNYHD ANY STENLIANAIXT ‘STANIATY L0 FTNAAHIS

YAIRIOTY ‘'YID0T-V4(Q) 40 ALL)



{panunuoos}

Pud dowe|eq pun g

Fuuudaq ‘aoumeq pun g

- aoue|R( pUIy W aGUBYd 19N

N0 sIysuel ],
Ul SI3)RUed |,

((sasn) sounos Julaveury 1oy

= T saunpuadya 1aa0 SanUaaal Jo LUt

saumpusdyd [0y,
§1024)5 pue sAemydipy
Adjus anqng
ausumny
s2ampuadyg

SMUDANL [R10],
[ERTBIN|
CIMUSAOT I |

TRIMUIAD N

(*b£787) ¢ (L6l § (686°001) $ (6860010 §  (211°¢10) & OFIRLT) $ (92R°79) $ (828°79) $
- (ere'001)  (68600D (6R6000) - (728770 (9TRTH (RZR'Z9)
{8FL'82) (8pL'87) - - {z1£517) (Ziesiy) -
= Z " - - - = - (528n) $20uN0s TUdULUL) SO 10|
(3+L°8%) (8rL°80) = ) (Z1gc1) {ZIes10 3 =
' 609'6L1 05L' 181 005 6 1L1°LOT PO’ Tot S1T' 69 S17°69%
1717 609641 054181 00§'b6 1217201 PO 79¢ SIZ69 SI1T6Ov
(688°0¢) 198°05 1 SNEL 00<F6 (fat'cco) TELor] C1T69% SI1Z'6ot
(688'08) ¢ 198051 § 052181 $ 00s'P6  $ (ERPTIE) 4 TELOPI $ SIT6o g 51769V §
PADESIN] [LIE (LIX] TEUIIL0) [ANETIN) eV jeury U0
REVITELOR | sjunowy pagapng annsog sjunmuy paaipng
wipng 1idpng
(LT WY PIEYY [RUL] HUA
IURIEA IIURLIEA

UONUIAII WL

IS0, MEXIYY [

Spun,[ anudady |m133adg

2007 '0€ YAEWILJAS IANT UVIA FHL YO

(panunuon)

SANNT TVINTWNIFAOD YOrvINNON
VALY ONY 13D0NE - IONVIVE ANNA N SHDNYHD ANV STUNLIANTIXA ‘STNNTATY A0 ATNGTHIS

YATHOTY ‘VIDOT1-VI() 40 ALLD)



|Wm|

(panunno)
IRV 2 $ 15060 $ on6'Trl % 6¥e'CrL % (Lr'eri) S (ILPFRID (WA ol S pus aduR g pun |
- 636°Th| 686'CF 686'TPI CLr'erl) (1Lp'br1) PPl Fuuidsq “aoue|eq pun g
Z90'9Sy z90'95k - - - - - JUET Uy wl SFUBYD AN
- = - = N = = E R3I2UINOS FUIBURLL) 1O [EIO ],
. = = 3 = - N0 S SUTL|
- . . - - - - [EIRIEITI]
W(s250) saounos IuIBURUL IO
790°95t 290°951 - - - - - SINIpUDdXD 1340 SANUIADL JO ADURIDN()
000028 . 000°0TS S = = - SANUPUAXD (2103,
000°028 = 000°07S E : waons pur siemydiy
. _ . - - - - Llajes a1qng
uaLnyy
.muuﬂw:w:uﬁ_#:_._
(886°¢9) TR 000°0Cs - - - - - SANUAARIL (1O,
- - - - - - - LRI
{8c6'c9) S T90'9SE $ 000°0T8 § - - § - $ - $ [RIUDLIWSAOTINU|
1SaNUIAAY
(EXSIE:FIN FnpRY (G| ET:ITs) Panvsay]) Ny 1Euy €I
DANSOY sjunowy padpng IANISe ] sJunowy paapng
12dpng 1dpng
[RUL YIIAN CORRII
JauELIRA IDURLIEA
xe], uonejiodsuea ] s3jdoag VMVYAMOLS

8007 "0 UHIWALJAS AHANT ¥VAA HL HOd

{panunuony)

SANNG INNAATY TVIDI45 YOrVINNON

TYNLIV ANV LADANE - AONVIVE AN NI SFDNVHD ANV SFINLIANIIXE 'SANNIAATY A0 ATNAAHDS

VARHO1 ‘VIJ01-VI() 40 AL



ic m.r

{panuiuen)

§ TI0E9C S TI0E9T $ Ti0gor § - $ § - § - $ PUa *aauejeq pun g

(LIRS T4 10°EYT TI0€9e - - - - FuiuurRag asn|pq pun.

- . - - - - - DDUE[EG PURY Ui ATURI[D 1K

= z < 5 - $004nos Juoueun) 120 (W0

- - - = E N0 $1pysuel |,
. - - - - - - Ul SIJSUBl )
"{s25n) 5904008 Juidueul) 0

= - T = - - T saunlpuadd J5A0 SINUBASI |0 ADUIDY ()

2 > § N . saunypuadxs (oo |

- - - 2 S - S2a0s pue sAesmiSiy
qUBLNTy
sunppuadyy)

= z - - = SINUIAD RO |

- - - - - P ) 1S
$ - § - g - g - $ - $ - ¢ - g MU EIGUTEEG AR
1SNUIAIY
JANEIIN Y WU g I LETe) BAnvEN) [ENDY TRy TenImag
3AMIS0,] SJUnoWYy pajadpngy IANR0,] spnowy paagpng
12dpng wdpny
1810, U11AA [LIUERIRIEN
JIUBLIR IPURLIBA
JUIUITEUE 4] 1N ey EPLIO]] YINog JANUIAOIAIN] WANEAT INEMNSEM dA(

8007 "0f Y99I LAHS AHANT AVIA AHL MO

{(ponunuocs)
SUNOA ANNAAT TVIDAIS YOIVINNON
TVALDY ANV LID0NE - ZONVTYE ANNA NI SHDNYHD ANY STINLIANII X3 ‘SANNIATY L0 ATNATHIS

VARIOTY 'VADOT-VA() 40 ALID)



|h‘ﬂ|

g - $ § - 9¢z 9T 91
= e = 9¢T 9tT 957
$ - § - g - - - -
{2ANEedaN) ey [LOIN] [EILTe) panmdap) Ry [ETE{ETS)
IANNSO] sjunowy paaspny hEY T RSN | sSiunouy PAdipng
1ndpng 1dpng
IBurg MHAL R+ T RUBTPAN
WUBIRA MUBLIEA

wAnudopadpay Apunwmo’)

JURLARIOJUT AR [RIOT]

800 0 YAYWALIFS AIAANT YVIA THL 90d

(panunuon)
SUNM HONIALA TYIDAdS YONYNNON

pu “d2ue|eq pun,|
FununFag “oouejeq pung

aaunrq puny i aFveyd 1N

$521n08 Futauruy IO |10
NG <IaySURL|
uj s19)5Uel |
((sosn} sooanos Smaueuy JMIO

SAINNIPUAIYD JIA0 SHAUDAIL JO LIUIN I

samppuatdxo ejo |
saaas pue sAemiSIH
ULy
ssaanppuadxg

SOMIIAD 210 ]
20
152J914]
ImuatUasodaqu]
HONURATY

TYNLOY ANV LADANY - HONVIVH ANNJ N1 STDONVHD ANV SHANLIANDI XY 'STNNIATH JO HTNATHDS

VARIO T 'VIDOT-VA(Q 40 ALID)



CiTy oF OPA-LOCKA, FLORIDA

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT DEBT SERVICE FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2008

Variance
With Final
Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual {Negrative)
Revenues:

[ntergovernmental S 1,610,350 5 1.610,850 5 1,558,282 3 {52.56%)

Interest 21.000 21,000 6,304 (14096}
Total revenues 1,621,850 1,631,850 1,564,586 (67,264}

Expendttures:

Debt service: .
Pnncinas 210,000 216,000 210,000 -
In_coest 396300 396,300 389,219 7.081

Tolal expenditures 606,300 606,300 599,219 7,081
Deficiency of revenues over expencitures 1,025,550 1,025,550 965,367 {60,183}
Other linsncing uses:

Transters oul (1.025,550) (1,025,550 {1.172,933) {147.387)
Net change in fund balance - - {207,566} {207.566)
Fund balance, beginning 565814 565814 567,644 1,830
Fund balance, end S 565814 S 565,814 g 360,073 S {205,736)
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CiTy oF OpPa-LOCKA, FLORIDA

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2008

Variance
With Final
Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Revenues:
Intergovernmental 5 4870710 S 3.178,780 § 1243419 § (1,935.361)
Interest - - - -
Total revenues 4,870,710 3,178,780 1,243,419 (1.935361)
Expenditures:
Current:
Highways and sireets 50,000 50,000 64,483 (14.485)
Capital ontlay 4.820.710 3236413 3.533.643 1,702.772
Total expenditures 4,870.710 5,286,415 3,598,128 1,688,287
Deficiency of revenuss over expenditures - (2,107.635) (2.334.709) (247.074)
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in - 2,107,635 2,107,635 -
Total other financing sources - 2,107,633 2,107.635 -
Net change 1n fund halance - - {247.074) (247.074)
Fund balance, beginning (417.272) (417.272) (417,272} -
Fund balance, end g (417272 § (417272) S (664,346) S (147.074)
J—




Statistical Section



STATISTICAL SECTION
This part of the City of Opa-locka’s comprehensive annual financial report presents detailed informaticn
as a context for understanding what the information in the financial statements, note disclosures, and

required supplementary information says about the City's overall financial health.

Contents

Financial Trends

These schedules contam trend information 1o help ihe readers understands how the City's Jinancial
performance and well-being have changed over time.

Revenue Capacity

These schedules contain information to help the readers assess the City's most significant local revenue
source, the property fax.

Debt Capacity

These schedules present information to help readers assess the affordabiliry of the Cuy s current levels of
outstanding debt and the City’s ability to issue additional debt in the future.

Demographic and Economic Information

These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators that help the reader understand ithe
enviromment within which the City’s financial activities rake place.

Operating [nformation

These schedules comain service and infrastructure data 1o help the readers understand how informaiion
in the City's financial report relates to the services the City provides and the uctivities it performs.

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is denved from the comprehensive
annual financial reports for the relevant year. The City implemented Statement 34 in the fiscal vear 2003,
schedules presenting government-wide information include information beginning in that year.
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CiTY OF OPA-LOCKA, FLORIDA
DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES DEBT
AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, 2008

Estimated

Share of

Estimated Direct and

Debt Percentage Overlapping
Govemnmental Unit Cuustanding Applicable Debt
Ovelapping:

Miami-Dade County § 2,519.542,000 15% §  1.559,000
Ciry direct debt 6.040,000 100% 6,040,000
Total direct and overlapping debt 3 2,525582.000 $ 7,599,000
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CI1TY OF OPA-LOCKA, FLORIDA
DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC STATISTICS
LAST TEN CALENDAR YEARS

(2)
Personal Per
Income Capua {3 {4) (5
Calendar (N (thousands Personal Median School Unemployment
Year Population of dollars) Income Age Enrollment Rate
1999 16,000 N/A 3 6,767 N/A 352,395 1.7
2000 14,951 % 19,631 9,538 273 360,202 17.5
2001 14,931 19,631 9,538 27.3 368,453 17.5
2002 14,951 19,631 9,538 273 374,725 MR
2003 14,951 19,631 9,538 27.3 371,482 17.5
2004 14,951 19,631 9,538 273 369,578 17.5
2005 14,951 19,631 9,538 27.3 361,550 17.5
2006 14,951 19,631 9,538 273 365,784 17.5
2007 14,951 19,631 9.538 273 333,283 17.5
2008 14,951 19,631 9538 273 385,655 17.5

(1) University of Florda, Bureau of Economic & Business Reasearch (except in 2000 - U.S. Census
Bureau, Census 2000}

{2) U.8. Census Bureau, Census 2000. Data for1999 - U.S. Census Burgau, Census 1990,

(33 U.S. Census Bureau, Census 2000. Data forl999 - U.S. Census Bureau, Census 1990,

(4) Source: Miami-Dade County School Beard. Data 15 for Miami-Dade County.

(5)U.S Census Bureau, Census 2000. Data for1999 - U.S. Census Bureau, Census 1590.
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Employet

Jackson North Maternity Center
Aramark Unifornmn

Master North America

Don Greene Poultry

United Sheet Metal

Combined Services

Miamu Offset

Cr. B. Ingram Elementary
Nathan B. Young Elementary
Alufab

Total

C1TY OF OPA-LOCKA, FLORIDA

PRINCIPAL EMPLOYERS
FISCAL YEAR 2008 AND NINE YEARS AGO

2003 1999

Percentage Perceniage

of Total City of Total City

Employees Rank Employment Employees Rank Emplovment
230 1 5% N/A N/A N/A
224 2 3% N/A N/A N/A
200 3 4% N/A N/A N/a
182 4 4% N/A N/A N/A
100 5 2% N/A N/A N/A
98 ) 2% N/A N/A N/A
75 7 2% N/A N/A N/A
73 3 1% N/A N/A N/A
66 9 1%% N/A N/A N/A
30 10 1% N/A N/A N/A

1,298 27%

Source; City Community Development and Planning

N/A - Not Available




CITY OF OPALOCKA, FLORIDA

FULL-TIME EQUIVALENT CITY GOVERNMENT EMPLOYEES BY FUNCTION/PROGRAM
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Functicn

Governmental activities;

General Government
Public Safety
Highways & Sirgets
Culture & Recreation

Business-type activinies:

Water & sewer utility
Solid waste (1)
Stormwater

Tous!

FISCAL YEAR
1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008

33 40 40 45 42 41 45 48 56 49

69 54 69 73 72 &3 76 80 &8 39

22 28 16 22 17 15 19 22 27 26

11 14 12 8 7 6 6 7 11

14 13 13 13 15 11 15 15 17 15

14 15 10 12 14 0 ] 0 0 0

1 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 4

164 166 162 173 169 5% 163 181 197 164

Source: City Human Resources Depariment.

(1 The City's solidwaste services was contracted ot slarting in 2004,
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CITY OF OPA-LOCKA, FLORTDA
OPERATING INDICATORS BY FUNCTION
LAST TWOQ FISCAL YEARS

Function 2008
Police (1}
Physical arrests 245
Parking violations 400
Traffic violations 2.400
No. of calls for service 15,699

Solidwaste(2)

Highways and Sreets (3)
Street resurfacing (miles) |

Potholes repaired 400
Parks and recrealion (4)
Youth athleti¢ program participan(s 120
Adults athletic program participants 14
Sentor's program average monthly participants 42
Special events 15
Water (3)
New connections 13
Water main breaks
Average daily consumption {millions of gallons) 2.50
Peak daily consumption millions of gallons) 3.00

{1) Source: City of Opa-locka Police Department

{2} Solidwaste collection is contracted out by the City.

(3) Source: City of Opa-locka Public Works Depanment.

{4) Source: City of Opa-locka Parks and Recersation Department.
Note: Data prior to 2006 is noi available.

N/A - Not Available

2007

800

72
I35
2.62
305
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HARVEY, COVINGTON & THOMAS.LUC

Certified Public Accountants & Consultants

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING
STANDARDS

To the Honorable Mayvor and Members of the City Commission
City of Opa-locka, Florida

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of City of Opa-locka,
Florida, as of and for the year ended September 30, 2008, which collectively comprise the City
of Opa-locka, Florida’s basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated
February 25, 2009.We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptrolier General of the United
States.

Internal Control Qver Financial Reporting

[n planning and performing our audit, we considered City of Opa-locka, Flonda’s internal
control over financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose
of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Opa-locka, Florida’s internal control over financial
reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Ciry of
Opa-locka, Florida’s internal control over financial reporting.

A control deficiency exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect
misstatements on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a control deficiency, or combination
of control deficiencies, that adversely affects the City of Opa-locka, Florida’s ability to initiate,
authorize, record, process, or report financial data reliably in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles such that there is more than a remote likelihood that a misstatement of the
City of Opa-locka, Florida’s financial statements that is more than inconsequential will not be
prevented or detected by the City of Opa-locka, Florida’s internal control.

A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that
results in more than a remote likelihood that a material misstatement of the financial statements
will not be prevented or detected by the City of Opa-locka, Florida’s internal control.

North Florida Cenfral Florida - 80-  West Florida South Florida
(904) 476-5713 Phone [407) 475-1000 Phone (813) 221-5111 Phone (954) 966-4435 Phone



Qur consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose
described in the first paragraph of this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies
in intemal control that might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not
identify any deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be
material weaknesses, as defined above.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether City of Opa-locka, Florida’s financial
statements are free of matenal misstatement, we performed tesis of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and granl agreements, noncompliance with which
could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts.
However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our
audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.

The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are
required 1o be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

We noted certain matters that we reported to management of City of Opa-locka, Florida, in a
separate letter dated February 25, 2009.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, City Commission,

others within the entity, and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not
intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

‘V’eézwtg, %r{,;?yw?ﬂxwg, HAHZ

Hollywood, Florida
February 25, 2009
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HARVEY, COVINGTON & THOMAS , UC

Certified Public Accountants & Consultants

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS
APPLICABLE TO EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133

To the Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Commission
City of Opa-locka, Florida

Compliance

We have audited the compliance of City of Opa-locka, Florida, with the types of compliance
requirements described in the U. S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133
Compliance Supplement that are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year
ended September 30, 2008. City of Opa-locka, Florida's major federal programs are identified in
the summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and
questioned costs. Compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants
applicable 10 each of its major federal programs is the responsibility of City of Opa-locka,
Florida’s management. Our responsibility 1s to express an opinion on City of Opa-locka,
Florida’s compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of comphiance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and
OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations.
Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program
occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about City of Opa-locka,
Florida’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we
considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis
for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of City of Opa-locka, Florda’s
compliance with those requirements.

In our opimon, City of Opa-locka, Florida, complied, in all material respects, with the
requirements referred to above that are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the
year ended September 30, 2008.

Internal Control Qver Compliance

The management of City of Opa-locka, Florida, is responsible for establishing and maintaining
effective internal control over compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts,
and grants applicable to federal programs.

North Florida Central Florida  -82-  West Florida South Florida
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[n planning and performing our audit, we considered City of Opa-locka, Flonda's internal
control over compliance with the requirements that could have a direct and matenial effect on a
major federal program in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of
expressing our opinion on compliance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an epinion on
the effectiveness of City of Opa-locka, Florida’s intemal control over compliance.

A control deficiency in an entity’s internal control over compliance exists when the design or
operation of a control does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A significant deficiency 1s a
control deficiency, or combination of conirol deficiencies, that adversely affects the entity’s
ability to administer a federal program such that there is more than a remote likelihood that
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is more than
inconsequential will not be prevented or detected by the entity’s internal control.

A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that
results in more than a remote likelihood that material noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program will not be prevented or detected by the entity’s internal
control,

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in
the first paragraph of this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in internal
control that might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as
defined above.

City of Opa-locka, Florida’s response to the findings identified in our audit is described in the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. We did not audit City of Opa-locka,
Florida’s response and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, City Commission,

others within the entity, and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not
intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

, O 4
T’%w&ﬁ, Lz'ram?‘/aw (‘.‘?}in&(ﬂd; HAZ

Hollywooed, Florida
February 25, 2009
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CITY OF OPA-LOCKA, FLORIDA
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
AND STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE PROJECTS
FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2008

GENERAL

The Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards and State Financial Assistance Projects
included herein represents the entire Federal grant awards of the City of Opa-locka (the
*City™) over which the City exercised direct operating control for the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2008.

BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards and State Financial
Assistance Projects include the federal grant activity of the City and is presented on the
accrual basis of accounting. The information in this schedule is presented in accordance
with the requirements of OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and
Non-Profit Orgamizations. Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule may
differ from amounts presented in or used in the preparation of, the basic financial
statements.

SCOPE OF AUDIT PURSUANT TO OMB CIRCULAR A-133

All Federal grant operations of the City are included in the scope of the Office of
Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133 audit (the Single Audit). The Single
Audit was performed in accordance with the provisions of the OMB Circular A-133
Compliance Supplement (Revised March 2008, the Compliance Supplement).
Compliance testing of all requirements, as described in the Compliance Supplement, was
performed for the grant programs noted below. This program represents all Federal
award programs and other grants with fiscal 2008 cash and noncash expenditures that
ensure coverage of at least 50% of federally granted funds since there were no individual
or cluster grants in excess of $500,000. Actual coverage 1s over 50% of total cash and
noncash Federal award program expenses.

FINDINGS OF NONCOMPLIANCE

There were no findings of noncompliance identified in connection with the September
30, 2008 Single Audit.

AUDITS PERFORMED BY OTHER ORGANIZATIONS

During the year ended September 30, 2008 there were no audits of the City’s
Administration of Federal Financial Assistance Program performed by Federal Agencies.

- 86 -
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CITY OF OPA-LOCKA, FLORIDA
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2008
SECTION I -Summary of Auditor’s Results

Financial Statements

Type of auditors' report issued: Unqualified

Internal contro! over financsal reporting:

Material weaknesses identified? No
Sigmficant deficiency identified that are not considered

to be material weaknesses? No
Neoncompliance matertal to financial statements noted? No
Federal Awards

Internal control over major programs:
Material weaknesses identified? No

Significant deficiency identified that are not considered
to be material weaknesses? No

Type of auditors’ report issued on compliance
for major programs: Unqualified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be
reported in accordance with Section 510 (a) of Circular
A-133 and/or Rule 10.567 of the State of Florida. No

Identification of major program:
CFDA Number Nuame of Federal Program

Department of Housing and Urban Development —
14.218 Community Development Block Grant (CDBG)

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between
Type A and Type B programs: $300,000

Auditee qualifies as low risk auditee? Yes

-88-



SECTION II - CURRENT

IL. Current Year Findings and Recommendation Related to the Financial Statements
No current year findings were noted.

SECTIONIII - FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

I1I. Findings and Questioned Costs for Federal Awards

No findings were noted for Federal awards expended.

ITTA. Findings and Questioned Costs for State Awards

Section none applicable.

THIS PORTION OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BEANK
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IV, Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings for Financial Statements

At the completion of the audit, for fiscal year 2007, recommendations were made and were fo be
addressed during the fiscal year 2008. We have reviewed the recommendations, for audit
findings for the financial statements and single audit, and the progress made toward
implementation. The cwrent status of the City’s effort, toward implementing the 2007

recommendations, is described below.

Condition

Current Year’s Status !

We recommend the City implement a 100% review of all employee

HR files. The HR Evaluation Committee must make all appropriate |

changes 10 each employee vacation, sick, and/or leave balances. It
is important that all time is accurately documented and recorded to
fairly compensate employees as well as reduce the risk of, the City,
over expending on accrued time not earned.

We also recommend that a standing committee be erected to
approve all request for payout of accrued vacation time. The
Committee should also define the term “emergency”. The City
should set parameters, within the employee manual, for certain
events that constitute immediate payout.

Partly Implemented

THIS PORTION OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

-90 -



IVA. Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings for Single Aundit

SA -2007-01

CONDITION:

The City grants department does not operate in an effective and efficient method
to ensure that all grants and other donor imposed stipulations are met in a timely
manner. The City must ensure that all newly awarded and previously received
grants are administrated to a reporting mechanism that allows for staff to produce
or respond to reports and inquiries from Grantor agencies in a time is of the
essence manner. Failure to produce reports and/or provide adequate supporting
documentation can lead to several Grantor agencies calling for certain awards to
be retumed to them or for the Grantor agency to cease providing funding for a
program on written notice. We audited the U.S. Department of Agriculture and
the U.S. Department of Environmental Protection programs funded during
September 30, 2008.

CFDA NUMBERS: 10.904 and 66.606

QUESTIONED COSTS: None

RECOMMENDATION:

We recommend the City compose, adopt and implement standardized grant
acquisition policies and procedures. It is imperative that the City incerporate such
polictes and procedures in order to ensure all grants are properly obtained and
maintained; and that reporting compliance guidelines are strictly followed and
enforced. Management should also ensure that the Grant Writer is held
accountable for all grant writing functions and practices. This person should be
informed of all activities that directly affect his/her position.

CURRENT STATUS:

Implemented

THIS PORTION OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK
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HARVEY, COVINGTON & THOMAS, LC

Certified Public Accountants & Consultants

MANAGEMENT LETTER IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE RULES
OF THE AUDITOR GENERAL OF THE STATE OF FLORIDA

To the Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Commission
City of Opa-locka, Florida

We have audited the basic financial statements of the City of Opa Locka , Florida (the “City”) as
of and for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2008, and have issued our report thereon dated
February 25, 2009.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Govermment Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133,
Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. We have issued our
Independent Auditor’s Report on Compliance with Requirements Applicable to each Major
Federal Program and State Project and on Intermal Control over Compliance, and Schedule of
Findings and Questioned Costs. Disclosures in those reports and schedule, which are dated
February 25, 2009, should be considered in conjunction with this management letter.

Additionally, our audit was conducted in accordance with Chapter 10.550, Rules of the Auditor
General, which governs the conduct of local governmental entity audits performed in the State of
Florida. This letter includes the following information, which is not included in the
aforementioned auditor’s reports or schedule:

Section 10.554(1)(1)1., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we determine whether or not
corrective actions have been taken to address findings and recommendations made in the
preceding annual financial audit report. Corrective actions have been taken to address findings
and recommendations made in the preceding annual financial audit report.

Section 10.554(1)(1)2., Rules of the Auditor General, requires our audit to include a review of the
provisions of Section 218.415, Flonda Statutes, regarding the investment of public funds. In
connection with our audit, we determined that the City of Opa Locka complied with Section
218.415, Florida Statutes.

Section 10.554(1)(1)3., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we address in the management
letter any recommendations to improve financial management. In connection with our audit, we
did not have such recommendations.

Section 10.5354(1)(1)4., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we address violations of laws,
regulations, contracts or grant agreements, or abuse that have occurred, or are likely to have
occurred, that have an effect on the determination of financial statement amounts that is less than
material but more than inconsequential. We did not note any such findings.

North Florida Central Florida =92 - West Florida South Floride
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Section 10.554(1)(i)5., Rules of the Auditor General, provides that the auditor may, based on
professional judgment, report the following matters that are inconsequential to the determination
of financial statement amounts, considering both quantitative and qualitative factors: (1)
violations of laws, regulations, contracts or grant agreements, or abuse that have occurred, or are
likely to have occurred, and (2) control deficiencies that are not significant deficiencies,
including but not limited to: (&) improper or inadequate accounting procedures (e.g., the
omission of required disclosures from the annual financial statements); (b) failures to properly
record financial transactions; and (¢} inaccuracies, shortages, defalcations, and instances of fraud
discovered by, or that come to the attention of, the auditor. In connection with our audit, we did
not have any such findings.

Section 10.554(1)(1)6., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that the name or official title and
legal authority for the primary government and each component unit of the reporting entity be
disclosed in this management letter, unless disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. The
City of Opa Locka was established by the Florida State Legislature. The City of Opa-locka has
no blended component unit.

Section 10.554(1)(1)7.a., Rules of the Auditor General, requires a statement be included as to
whether or not the local governmental entity has met one or more of the conditions described in
Section 218.503(1), Florida Statuies, and identification of the specific conditions met. In
connection with our audit we determined that the City of Opa-locka did not meet any of the
conditions described in Section 218.503(1), Florida Statutes.

Section 10.554(1)(1)7.b., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we determine whether the
annual financial report for the City of Opa-locka for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2008,
filed with the Florida Department of Financial Services pursuant to Section 218.32(1)(a), Florida
Statutes, is in agreement with the annual financial audit report for the fiscal vear ended
September 30, 2008. In connection with our audit, we determined that these two reports were in
agregment.

Pursvant to Sections 10.554(1)(1)7.c. and 10.556(7), Rules of the Auditor General, we applied
financial condition assessment procedures. It is management's responsibility to monitor the City
of Opa-locka financial condition, and our financial condition assessment was based in part on
representation made by management and the review of financial information provided by same.
The financial condition assessment was performed as of the end of the fiscal year end.

Pursuant to Chapter 119, Flonda Statutes, this management letter is a public record and its
distribution is not limited. Auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
require us to indicate that this letter is intended solely for the information of the Mayor, City
Commmissioners, City Manager and management of the City of Opa-locka, Florida, and the
Florida Auditor General, and 1s not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than

these s CClﬁEd artles

uﬁ .AW’

Harvey, Covington & Thomas, L.L.C.
February 25, 2009
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